
Corrections to the transcript of the September 11, 1985, meeting
of the Montana Reserved Water Rights Compact Commission and the
Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes - corrections submitted
by the State of Montana

page 1, paragraph 1, line 1 - omit "Chairman of the"
(following Michael Pablo)

page 1, paragraph last, line 6 - Add "Flathead Irrigation
Project water users" (following Control)

page 1, paragraph last, line 7 - Add "Flathead Irrigation
Project water users" (following Control)

page 4, paragraph 1, line 2 - change "you" to read "your"

page 4, paragraph 3, line 4 - change "contricts" to read
"constrains"

page 4, paragraph 3, line 6 - "constituency" is misspelled

page 4, paragraph 4, line 1 - insert after "compact" the word
"Commission"

page 10, paragraph 4, line 5 - "accommodate" is misspelled

page 12, paragraph 1, line 4 - "Trochlel" is misspelled

page 19, paragraph last, line 5 - "Moiese" is misspelled

page 28, paragraph 3, line 1 - change "to" to read "into"

page 28, paragraph 3, line 8 - change "constraint" to read
"constrain"

page'28, paragraph 6, line 2 - change "our" to read "out"

page 34, paragraph 1, lines 8, 9, 11 - "Aquifer" is
misspelled three times

page 35, paragraph 1, line 3 - "Aquifer" is misspelled

page 35, paragraph 4, line 3 - "occurred" is misspelled

page 36, paragraph 7, line 4 - "aquifers" is misspelled

page 39, paragraph 2, line 6 - "agricultural" is misspelled



page 39, paragraph 6, line 2 - "Moiese" is misspelled

page 40, paragraph 1, line 2 - change "dominate" to
"dominant"

page 42, paragraph 3, line 6 - omit the first "would"

page 42, paragraph 3, line 16 - "Tennant" is a proper noun,
and the first letter should be capitalized

page,51, paragraph 10, lines 2,6- "assessable" is
misspelled and should not be confused with accessible.

page 60, paragraph 9, line 1 - change "serious" to read
"seriously"

page 61, paragraph 6, line 2 - change "redds" to "rivers"
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PROCEEDINGS

The proceedings started at 9:00 a.m., September 11, 1985,
in the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribal Complex.

Mike Pablo, member of the Tribal Council presided at the
negotiation session.

Due to equipment failure the introductions of representatives of
the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes were not recorded.

Mr. Pablo introduced Ron Therriault, Dan Decker, Jim Goetz,
Bob Delk, Peg Trochlel, Tom Bateridge, Bernard Burnham, John
Neuman, A1 Spang, and Teresa Wall McDonald.

MR. MCOMBER: (Some of Mr. McOmber's introductions were not
recorded due to the ^uipment failure.) Scott Brown, Program
Manager for the Commission; Jack, Audrey, have been around since
the beginning and Mrs. Armstrong, Elsie Armstrong, is the
secretary that was recently obtained, as I indicated to you, and
John Paulson with the Attorney General's Office who is an
observer and an advisor to the Commission. I think that is the
amount of people that came with us, Mr. Chairman.

MR. PABLO: Chuck Stipe, from the Joint Board?

MR. STIPE: Yes, I am Chairman of the Joint Board and this
is Alan Mihkelsen. Alan is our Secretary. We represent the
i rrigators.

MR. MCOMBER: Joint Board of what. Chuck?

MR. STIPE: The Joint Board of Control, it is the elected
representatives of the irrigators.

MR.MCOMBER: Of what districts?

MR, STIPE; The three districts, and state. The Joint Board
is made up of total membership of each of the three boards.

MR. MCOMBER: Oh

MR. DECKER: I believe we missed Rick Aldrich from the

solicitor's office.

MR. ALDRICH: Thanks, Dan.

- 2 -



MR. PABLO; After the last meeting there was a couple of
issues that was left open. This is from your letter, Gordon, to
Joe Felsman. And, we can start with open meetings and public
participation that was kind of left open last time.

MR. MCOMBER: Would you have any comment on that at this
time? we would like to have that added to the agenda.

MR. PABLO: Well, I was just going to start there.

Mr. McOmber: Okay.

MR. GOETZ: Mr. Chairman, I have suggested to the Chairman
that we start here because there is some people from the Joint
Board of Control here and the whole issue, newspaper
participation and the open meetings issue, I think, was left
unresolved.

I made some comments in the last minutes, but I indicated that
we would have to take it up with the Tribal Council. And we
recognize that the state open meetings law but we don't think we
are bound by that law, and the Council has taken it up then and
we feel that the meetings should be closed that if we are
going to make meaningful progress in negotiations, then we need
to have the parties here and not forces who may be divisive or
make use of the information for other purposes. And I think
anybody who has been in a negotiating situation, a serious one,
knows the importance of having the parties there and having some
of the sensitive matters kept confidential.

So that's the position we've taken, I think we need to lay that
on the table right at the beginning since there are people who
are not either representing the Confederated Tribes or the
Compact Commission here present at the meeting, and I think we
have to resolve that before we get on with other business.

MR. ROTH: Mr. Chairman, may I ask him a question? You
indicated that certain matters should be kept confidential. Are
you suggesting that the Commission not discharge its obligation
to inform the public and those interested as to the progress of
negotiations? Keep the basically the Commission's
constituency advised as to what is transpiring?

MR. GOETZ: Well, you know, I can't tell you how to run your
ship, obviously. But I think that when you are talking about a
negotiating situation, I think you recognize that there are
matters that at least for the time being, during the process
of negotiation have to be maintained as confidential. And I
think that's pretty important in terms of long term effort of
reaching agreement.
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I don't know if you have looked at your position under the open
meetings law or done any research on it. I don't know what you
position has to be, but I feel that when you have certain types
of meetings, you close them. For example, when you're
discussing tactics, in terms of approach toward the Confederated
Tribes, it-seems to me you close those tactical meetings. So
there are lines drawn under that open meetings law, even by you,
I suspect,

• MR. ROTH: Well, that's true. We have closed sessions and
we have open sessions but our past practice has been that all
negotiating sessions have been open to the public. As far as I
know there hasn't been an exception to that. While we do go on
and off the record on occasion, nevertheless, the I guess what
you would call public participation, stays there. They are
permitted to stay there. And while I've been negotiating for
the Commission, we've not excluded anyone from the negotiating
sessions whether we've been off the record or on the record.
There has not been a chilling atmosphere that has evolved out of
that kind of open discussion.

As a matter of fact, the Fort Peck Compact, as you know, was
negotiated in just that kind of atmosphere. So, we don't
particularly feel that the fact that the public is at these
sessions, necessarily restricts or constricts them. As a matter
of fact, we feel pragmatically that in order to serve our
constituiency which happens to be the entire state of
Montana that in a sense, it is essential that those parties
who have an interest in the compact be present and be able to
participate in the sense or attend, I should not say
participate, there is a difference.

The Compact is an automonous body that is clothed with the
authority to negotiate compacts with entities who claim reserved
water rights. We are the negotiators we intend not to
abdicate nor to transfer that authority to anyone else.
Nevertheless, we prefer to counsel with DNRC, the Attorney
General's Office as a matter of fact, we encourge those
agencies, plus the Governor's Office, to have a representative
at each and every negotiating session, so that the three main
branches of government are totatally involved and informed about
the negotiating process. They do not participate in the
negotiations, but they do attend and we do listen to their
suggestions.

By the same token, public members ought to attend. We encourage
that attendance. Again they will not participate in the
negotiations, but they do have an interest that's intimately
involved in the results from negotiations. And I think that our
initial position is that they should be permitted to attend. I
am not even sure you did pose a question whether we've
researched the implications of the open meeting law I haven't.
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vis-a-vis closing a negotiating session to the public. But I
can perceive that if we don't fulfill the requirements of the
Montana open meeting law, while you,may not be bound to it,
nevertheless; the Compact Commission can very well be bound to
it, and it could very well sound the death knell to any compact
that would be 'negotiated which violated the terms of theopen
meeting_l_aw in which the public was not permitted to attend, I
haven't researched it to that extent but I perceive that as
probably the worst case situation that could evolve out of a
closed negotiating session.

I- suppose there are occasions when .we could close it, because
you could, I suppose say that, what we are trying to do is-
settle a law suit or a potential law suit. Right now we've got
an adjudication, comprehensive adjudication, of all Montana
water rights in progress and basically that is, in a sense, a
law suit, so you can say we are negotiating that. But I think
we are drawing it a little bit too far to say that kind of
characterization would somehow insulate us from the implications
of the open meeting law.

MR. MCOMBER: Mr. Chairman, the bottom line for us has been
that the tribes says that they will not meet with us or
negotiate if the meeting is open, then, obviously, we don't
negotiate but, the decision in effect is up to you.

Mr. GOETZ; That sounds like an ultimatum.

MR. ROTH: Mr. Chairman, I don't know that you mean it as an
ultimatum, but certainly that okay.

MR. MCOMBER: But you know we have given the closed
meeting law at least we had to offer...

MR. GOETZ: Well, I don't think you can say that, when your
counsel says he hasn't researched it, although he has an
intuitive opinion on it. If you're. saying ^that we have to take
that position because we have dispositive feeling about the open
meeting law, when your counsel hasn't researched it, I think
that's not a good faith position to take. - I—;—there is no
question that the law is out there, and there is no question in
my mind that there is some concern. But also, I can envision
some real problems with the negotiations if we have the persons
attending who are going to make use of the, I am not sugge.sting
that this necessarily would be the case, but who are going to
make use of the negotiations for their own purposes, which may
detract from the progress. And I think what we should do is
caucus on this issue, right at the outset. I wanted to raise it
right at the outset because we have the people here from the
outside and I thought we should be clear on that and it is
something, Mr. McOmber, that you suggested that we address at
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some point in the meeting. So, I hate to start right out with a
caucus, but I think this is an important enough issue at the
outset that we should do that.

MR. MCOMBER: Before we do that, let me expand a little on
the situation we find ourselves in. You people represent the
tribe o^ reservation and you represent the governing bodies; the
Commission is a long, long, ways from enjoying that kind of
authority. We have a House of Representatives with a hundred
people, and some are Democrats, some are Republicans. They are
businessmen, ranchers, sportsmen, ecologists. In getting this
bill approved, then there is the Senate, there is the Governor,
as Urban mentioned. We have an Attorney General who is
independently elected, with opinions of his own, 800,000 people,
many irrigation districts, many irrigators, and as a practical
fact of life, we have to get the approval of those people, most
of them anyway, to get this through the legislature and make it
become law. So you have to understand that we have to
communicate with these people at some stage in the game and we
have to accept their input.

MR DECKER: I don't believe that the tribe was suggesting
that you don't keep the public informed of the progress of the
meetings. I don't think we have the intent of suggesting that.
I think that that is probably a necessary part of the
Commission's function is to keep the ^ople informed of the
progress of the committee. However as your counsel has also
mentioned, that this, the Compact Commission, is a vehicle by
which the State of Montana is utilizing negotiations, in a
sense, in lieu of the adjudication process which is allowed by
the McCarran Amendment. As counsel has pointed that out, I
think you can use that line, that obviously the position is
available to the Commission to say, essentially what we are
talking about are settlement issues and what the Tribes are
talking about with the State is talking about our proprietary
interest.

And I think that the Tribes have the right to protect those
proprietary interests, and I think the State also has obligation
to in the neogotiation process to assist both sides in not
hindering any negotiation process that discusses sensitive
issues. I think part of the Tribes' concern if you all you
have to do is read the local papers to realize part, of the
Tribes' concern in having people who are not parties to those
negotiations present, and concern about the possibility that
then those discussions being used in a fashion that hinders the
whole negotiating process. I think we're coming to the table in
good faith. We need to be open, keep those things on the
table. We are talking about proprietary interests and we need
to be ...(inaudible)... now.
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And I agree with Mr. Goetz You really did sound pretty much
like an ultimatum either the tribes are willing to talk about
proprietary interests or there is no negotiations with
non-member parties here. So that part, concerns the Tribes.
Again I ^ust totally want to emphasis it is not our intent to
say the Commission should not inform the public of the
negojbiatipn progress.

MR. MCOMBER: I want you to understand that I never meant it
that way I don't think the Commission ever did. But the
question has arisen before and under the restraints of the law,
we have a problem. Maybe we feel that the meetings should be
closed, but you have to understand that we have perhaps, a
different law to operate under than you do. I certainly have no
objections I think it's a good idea to caucus but I did want
you to understand that we have some obligations and some
practical public relations we have to keep up if any compact
ever becomes law. Do you want to call that caucus now?

MR. ROTH; Mr. Chairman, couldn't we discuss this a bit. I
know that it is sensitive to the proprietary whatever
proprietary information they have I am sure that is true of
every tribe and agency that we've negotiated with. But
basically, whatever that information is is accessible in a
lawsuit. There isn't any proprietary information that you can
keep from the other party in a lawsuit, except perhaps how you
are going to use that tactically to your advantage in the
lawsuit. So there isn't anything that you have that isn't
accessible to discovery I don't care what it is, unless it's a
consultant who you don't intend to utilize in the event of
trial we would still be entitled to the name of the
consultant.

So, we realize that you some suspicion, but I think our
success and we haven't had a lot, but what success we have had
in our negotiations, evolved out of the fact that, after the
first Port Peck Compact was sort of buried, the second one
evolved out of a lot of communication a lot of people being
involved a lot of people knowing what the issues are. As a
matter of fact, we find that those people who might be most
opposed to the compact or to a specific quantity of water or to
a specific right which is recognized in an Indian tribe, that
those people those opponents, that they actually attend the
negotiating sessions where those kinds of issues are
discussed begin to understand what the other's position is.
That includes your tribal members as well as others people who
are non tribal members.

So there is a benefit that flows from having an open meeting
with regard to negotiations. I don't want you to be fearful of
the fact that, you are always going to be Dijeiudiced.^ I don'tthink so, I think there ari positive benefits that flow from
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this. We will, of course the state of Montana, is just as
interested as you are in not compromising the litigation
position by virtue of anything that transpires in these
negotiations, and we certainly do intend prior to getting into
substantive negotiations to have some sort of an agreement
which provides that none of the information that is transferred,
nothing that is said, nor positions taken will have any effect
whatsoever'in any lawsuit and—-nor would it be admissible. If
the information, of course, is data why, obviously, it would be
admissible, but admissible based on discovery in a lawsuit.

So I think as far as prejudicing any litigation position is
concerned, I don't think you would. That's number one; and
number two, I think, you would find that having whoever wants to
attend, attend, is actually beneficial to the ultimate success
of the compact itself.

MR. PABLO: Jim, do you want a short recess?

MR. ALDRICH: Mr. Chairman, if I might real quickly
Jim could you define a little bit the restrictions that the
Tribe is really interested in having here? I think that, on
behalf of the Department of the Interior, everybody knows that
we are wearing many hats at these proceedings, and we are going
to be representing not only the Tribes and it's interests, but
there are some interests of the Flathead Irrigation Project that
we have a contractual obligation to protect. There are some,
not necessarily conflicting interests, of the Fish and Wildlife
Service on the wildlife refuges that we are going to have some
interest in. And in conducting these negotiations we would
assume that we will have the opportunity to have whatever
necessary expertise from within those various federal agencies
availble to us.

MR. GOETZ: We didn't, we don't have any problem with that.
In fact, one of the issues that I think is scheduled, one of the
issues that we didn't resolve last time, is who is speaking for
the^federal enclaves on the reservation, and I think the answer
to that is you are, the Department of the Interior. And so in a
sense, you are a quasi-party and that would go for the staff
too. And I recognize there are two hats, the Flathead
Irrigation Project represented by the BIA, and that's another
item we've got on the agenda to discuss the the Flathead
Irrigation Project. So I am not sure I can define the outlines
of what we wanted to do here until we caucus, but I didn't, it
wasn't intended to exclude the Department of Interior, of
course.

MR. ALDRICH: If I could correct one thing you said, you
called us a quasi-party. I think that it is the belief of the
federal government that we have a very significant interest in
the outcome of the negotiations and we are not here as a
quasi-party.
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MR. GOETZ: Well, that's the best I could think of there
were alternatives... (laughter) Well, why don't we caucus?

' MR. MCOMBER: Could you suggest a room we might be in, Mr.
Chairman?

^ '

MR. GOETZ: Well why don't you "stay here, and we will go
find us a room. Do you want to have a confidential caucus,
also?.

MR. ROTH; Well, we want a confidential caucus, yeh. If
you've got this room bugged...(laughter)... tell us now. We
don't want any spy dust on...(laughter)

CAUCUS - 10:00 A.M.

BACK IN SESSION - 10:15 A.M.

MR. PABLO: Are we ready to start again, Jim?

MR. GOETZ: Yes, we have had a chance to discuss our
position. One thing, Mr. McOmber, I want to point out from the
latest minutes when we were discussing the open meetings
issue on page 41, on top of the page, one of the things you
said, is "the policy that has been adopted with other tribes is
that we let anyone in unless the tribes doesn't want them in."
Is that the case?

MR. MCOMBER: That is what I meant to say, but after you
left I was advised that that isn't what I said to you here.

MR. GOETZ: In other words, that's not then the case? So
that...

MR. MCOMBER: Oh yes.

MR. GOETZ: So the_tribes have had a veto and have had a
right to exclude others that they don't want in?

>> f '
^ I

• MR. MCOMBER: Well, since I've been here, we haven't been
confronted with that issue, but that was I was advised that
that was the policy in effect.

MR. ROTH: Well, that's what Chairman McOmber said but I
.am not sure that that covers all the legal implications of the
open meeting law. Obviously, as a matter of pragmatic'fact, if
you want someone excluded and you are not going to negotiate
without that person excluded, you can say so. By the same
token, the Commission might very well, under the obligations'
imposed by the open meeting law, be required to say," well, we
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can't meet here and we will have to meet somewhere else where
you can't exercise that kind of authority as to who is in the
meeting and who is not,"

s

So, I think the Commission will have to take a second look at
what the open meeting law means to the Commission and its
ne_gp__tiajting meetings with agencies and Indian tribes, before we
can really give'you a definitive position. Nevertheless, we
would like to insofar as possible try to convince you that
it is in your best interests-7-and I truly mean that this
isn't posturing or facade It is in your best interests if
you really do want to- negotiate a compact, to have the disparate
elements of society and government here to witness the
negotiating process because it is in that way that we can best
educate those people who need education with regard to the
negotiating process and why various compromises are reached with
regard to some crucial issues.

I can't overstress that, and I really mean that. As we caucused
we all paused a moment to think about that concept and how
important it was to ultimately getting a successful compact with
the Fort Peck Tribes. It was essential it was the core it
was the core reason for having a successful meeting.

The second thing is that we don't want an exercise in futility.
That means that, by violating conceding to your position, and
then violate the law, and then-voiding whatever we've done. We
don't want to do that. I thought of ways, perhaps, that we can
accomodate your interests and our interests. One of them would
be to require everyone who is in attendance to sign the
agreement that whatever information they acquire at a meeting
would not be used in any subsequent litigation or whatever we
would agree to, has been agreed on, and require each and every
person who attends to sign one of those agreements. That would
be a way to protect some of your interests.

Another way might be possibly having some executive committee of
each party caucus on some issues where you feel proprietary
information would be disclosed to those persons you didn't want
it disclosed to. I don't know whether that would pass
constitutional or statutory muster, but that's another
possibility. I am just throwing some things out so that we
don't reach an impasse at this premature stage of these
proceedings. I suggest that's something that we all can use our
imagination and creativity to probably resolve and we shouldn't
reach hard and fast positions at this time. But I don't think
the subjects are up for discussion today necessarily involve any
proprietary information.
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MR. GOETZ: We reached a position in the caucus, and we're
anxious also not to reach impasse at this early stage. We also
agree that there is a need for both sides to research the state
open meetings law more definitively, so here is what we
suggest. I did want clarification on Mr. McOmber's statement in
the previous minutes, but we agree that matters on this agenda
that we've got scheduled today are not particularly sensitive.
We're willing to proceed with negotiations today on the agenda
items and we will consider any other items you want to bring up,
but I don't want to make a commitment until we know what those
are, and we will then go back and research before the next
meeting the open meetings law and I assume you too.

And we want to make it clear that we are reserving the right to
assert a confidentiality position in future negotiations and
exclude parties, at this time, so you know where we stand on
that. It may be that things will go smoothly, and one of the
things we will want to look at is whether there is any abuse
between the meetings of the issues, by that I mean this
information spread publically, or use of the information for
purposes that detract from the negotiations. But with those
stipulations, we're certainly willing to proceed with the agenda
items today. I want to make it clear and I think you did.
Urban, make it clear earlier but I want to make absolutely
clear, that members of the public do not participate here as
parties and I want to make it specific to the Joint Board of
Control since, of course, we have been in recent litigation with
the Joint Board and two of the members are here sitting at the
table almost suggesting that they are parties. And it may
just be an accident of the way you were seated, or you may feel
you are parties, but I think it is crystal clear from both sides
that members of the public do not participate, they are here
only as observers.

MR, ROTH: That's correct. I do believe that I made our

position crystal clear from the onset, that is we are the
agency. Mr. McOmber, is the Chairman of that agency, who will
negotiate a compact or, for a compact that while members of
the public and other agencies of government are in attendance,
they do not participte in the dicussions and they do not have
right to participte in the discussions, except at the invitation
of both of the parties and agreement by both parties that they
can participate.

MR. GOETZ: Well, I suggest we move on with the agenda then.

MR. PABLO: Okay. We had exchange of technical information
from the last meeting. I think Scott Brown was to contact Tom
Bateridge, did he contact him?

MR. MCOMBER: Scott do you want to comment on that.
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MR. BRCWN; The exchange of technical information well,
;there were last fall, a few two or three,
perhaps telephone conversations between myself, Tom and, on
one occasion. Peg Trochelel, and we were not able to arrive at a
mutually agreeable date to meet in Missoula or here or Helena to
discuss those needs. One of the reasons was that we, the
Commission.arid the Commission's staff, soon after that time
became involved in the Fort Peck Compact and that took all of
our time.

So I apologize on behalf of the Commission that that was never
carried out. However, if the two Chairmen are willing, I think
in a very short order we could discuss a very comprehensive list
of technical needs right here. I'd be happy to go briefly into
a discussion of what we I'd be happy to initiate that or Tom
or Peg, or anyone that you feel represents the Tribes, could add
his or her comments if you think that would be productive at
this time?

MR. MCOMBER: Mr. Chairman, would you prefer that the two
sets of technicians sit down together and come up with a list,
or would you like to discuss it at this stage. In view of what
Mr. Goetz has just said about the agenda, I think you should
respond to that.

MR. PABLO: I think just have the two technical sides sit
down and go over a list to bring back for comment.

MR. GOETZ: Well, how extensive Scott, how extensive is
your list?

MR. BROWN: I am sure that it is not completely
comprehensive, but I think it is not extensive at all. It could
probably be discussed in fact, I have had only a brief
opportunity to discuss it with our special counsel. Urban Roth,
and he may, himself, in fact, wish to because I know he had
some thoughts of it, himself on the issue, himself.

MR, PABLO: We hoped, probably, to get that list and bring
it back to the counsel before, to get action on it for this
meeting, but we missed the whole cycle.

MR. DECKER: Mr. Chairman, maybe what we should do is, then,
after this meeting, possibly have the technical people get
together and set up a time when they could get together and
discuss technical measures rather than going in (inaudible) at
this time,

MR. MCOMBER: Before that, Mr. Chairman as opposed to us
to coming in with a one-sided list I believe that Scott should
talk to your technical people and come up with a comprehensive
list that represents viewpoints from both sides.
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MR. ROTH: One thing, I think, preliminarily we absolutely
need is the land ownership, and who is irrigating and who is not
irrigating and„what lands they are irrigating. That's essential
from your standpoint and it's essential- from our standpoint. I
think most of that information is accessible but I think you
have more.control over who actually owns the land. I think you
have 'control over that information more than we do. I hope you
do...(laughter)...otherwise, it's going to be fairly costly and
we may need to go into the county records but you know who your
tribal members are and probably know^ what lands they own.

MR. PABLO: You'd want the tribal member ownership from us?

MR. ROTH: We would want the tribal ownership and the
non-tribal ownership if you have that-,—what lands they actually
own. We know that you have a map, we have that ownership map
ourselves, but we don't know whether it's tribally fee, it's
tribally owned in fee, or, I mean, let me'go back, whether its
owned by member in fee or non-member in fee is what I meant to
say.

MR. BROWN: And, may I add to that, Mr. Roth?

MR. ROTH: You bet.

MR. BROWN: I think it's even more complicated than
I obviously you've thought about this too—-by the need to do
actually what I consider a .title search. 'Cause we are going to
be talking about lands that passed from a tribal member, to a
non-Indian, and then perhaps to a subsequent non-Indian, and all
those things have important implications on the structure of the
reserved water right. So the most complicated, one of the most
complicated pieces of technical information, I think, is a full
land ownership analysis including tracing back parcel by
parcel the transfers of land.

, MR. GOETZ: Well, the answer the partial answer to that is
yes, that data is needed; but and, probably, yes, the tribes
have better data than you do on it, but there is a long way to
go in terms of tracing the history of the.allotments and the
homestead parcels and the pattern of ownership, much less'the
pattern of irrigation. And it is going to be a costly project

.and I assume that you are not suggesting that the tribes go
ahead and fund that and do that and then turn over the
information to the Commission. That's an example of the kind of
information I think is needed that one thing we are certainly
open to is talking about jointly funding.

MR, ROTH: Why don't we resolve it by having the BIA fund
that...(laughter)...and get that information to us in about 90
days or shorter.
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MR. GOETZ: Well, I think that's one thing we can take care
of here, today.... (laughter)

MRS. ROTH; Well, Mr. Chairman...

MR. PABLO: Dan?

MRS. ROTH: Go ahead.

MR. DECKER: Mr. Chairman, the point that I was making, just
to follow up what Jim was saying, is that we agree that that's
research that needs to be done, but it's costly research, it's
going to take quite a bit of time, and so that gets to the
question of what kind of assistance is the Commission willing to
contribute toward an effort like that. There are different
problems in getting assistance from the BIA for that same kind
of research and maybe Rich might want to comment on that, but
that's a pretty massive project and it's such a tough thing, it
really is a title search, essentially, for every parcel of land
that is within the exterior boundaries of the reservation.

MR. BROWN: I would like to think there is a shortcut, but I
haven't been, in the years I've spent dealing with this matter,
I have not found an acceptable shortcut, so then the question is
who does the work, who is willing to help fund it, and I don't
have the authority to decide for the Commission whether or not
we are able to participate in those. We recognize the work has
to be done; it's the Commission's decision as to whether or not
there will be joint studies, if that's what we are talking
about.

MR. PABLO: Audrey? Did you want to comment?

MRS, ROTH; Mr. Chairman, I was just going to mention,it
seems to me that a lot of that information would be available in
data that you already have, such as at the SCS. Isn't some of
that available at the county courthouses.

MR. DECKER: Yes, it is but it would cost a lot to go back
and go through the

MRS. ROTH: Research it?

MR. DECKER: Yes.

MR. ROTH: I think perhaps one of the threshold issues is
how much that would cost as to who is going to participate,
where we are going to get the money, so - do you know,
gentlemen, whether anyone within the tribe or the BIA has done
anything as far as the cost analysis?
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MR. GOETZ: I can't speak for the BIA, I know the tribe has
not done any kind of formal, or I don't think so maybe you
should speak to that Dan cost analysis, we're looking at what
kind of staffing would be needed and what kind of time schedule
would be consistent with getting that ]0b done. Of course,
that's somewhat contingent on funding besides the staff, but it
seems _to„me, that that's^ th^Jtype^ of issue that staff needs-to
get together and, the two staffs, and get some definition and
come back with some input to us on timing, and cost and whether
it would need joint cooperation.

MR. BATERIDGE: Mr. Chairman, could I suggest that' Scott and
I should perhaps get together today, and agree on a firm meeting
date and time and we could discuss those things in the next two
or three weeks.

MR. PABLO: Gordon?

MR. MCOMBER: I was going to say, I certainly agree, Mr.
Chairman. I thought we had resolved that at the last meeting
that first we need a list of the information that's needed to
arrive at a compact. It's getting along to the time when we
better take a look at the whole picture and agree on the
information that's needed, and then we can take funding
and-so-forth from there.

MR. PABLO; Jim?

MR. GOETZ: One of the things that we put on the agenda was
that we would like to hear on your Fort Peck experience, and
either now or when we get to that agenda item, I would like to
know what happened vis-a-vis the Fort Peck Reservation on
this particularly the land ownership history, what did you do
about that and was there a ]oint sponsoring of the research, who
bore the cost?

MR. PABLO: Scott?

MR. BROWN: Well, I just wanted to ask if there,are any
other issues that Tom or any of you feel that should be fleshed
out. We spent just a few moments on this land ownership'and I
think it was a productive discussion, everyone now recognizes
the complicated nature of having to do that, and the staffs can
discuss and try to determine how much it is going to cost and
how much time. But are there any other issues such as
irrigabilty, water availability, or anything else you would like
to flesh out for a few moments like that.

MR. ROTH; I was thinking in terms of your claims to
aboriginal rights for instream flows, and water sufficient to
maintain a fishery. Have you done, acquired any information
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with regard to that issue that these folks can talk about
exchanging. Obviously we have some information in the lawsuit
that you recently filed,

MR. GOETZ; Mr. Chairman, there is some information on that
issue, but you should be aware that what the fisheries
biologists,had to do for our proof in that case is take some
shortcuts and they applied what was known as the Tennant method
of assessing instream flows which is not something we intend to
rely on ultimately in our proof—:now whether it be in terms
of negotiating or in terms of ultimate adjudication. We are
happy to make that Tennant data available it is, of course,
already public information, and the filings in the federal
lawsuit in Helena, and there are other publications tentative
publications done by the fisheries biologists with respect to
the lower Flathead study that is paid for at least in
part by the Bonneville Power Administration, No problem
making that data available either,

MR, ROTH: Excuse me, what did you say, lower Flathead
study?

MR. GOETZ: Yes. Isn't that what it is called? There are
yearly reports, like two of them published, and that's an
ongoing study.

MR, ROTH; Okay,

MR. BRCWN; But you don't propose to use that Tennant method
in either the negotiations or the litigation, is that did I
understand you correctly?

MR. ROTH: I think what he said is that they reserved the
right to define their position by a more precise method if they
feel that's necessary.

MR. GOETZ: That's right. I don't know how quickly these
negotiations are going to go or what shortcuts we may decide on,
I mean sometimes in negotiations you make summary decisions,
just by way of compromise. Certainly if we go into water
adjudications, we don't propose to use the Tennant method on
the, at least on the main streams.

MR. PABLO: Are there any other comments?

MR. ROTH: I assume that subsumed under the "instream flow"
data would be the streams and the bodies of water upon which you
claim some aboriginal right or reserved water right for instream
flows.

MR, GOETZ: Well, there,,.
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MR. ROTH: The identification of the water, as part of the
process...

MR. GOETZ: Mr. Chairman, there are two issues here one is
the reservation streams, and the other is the issue of instream
flows protected by treaty rights off-reservation. And I think
it is important to keep the two separate, because the treaty
provisions are different vis-a-vis those issues. Our recent
litigation had to do only with streams on the reservation and
that's what the data collected so far met, that was submitted in
that lawsuit.

Now last time you asked us for some preliminary identification
of the streams that we are talking about off-reservation, and
Mr. Decker has a sample claim that we have filed in the state
adjudication process objectiving to the preliminary decree and
also a list of drainages. We filed virtually identical
objections on the other drainages. You should bear in mind that
this gives you an overview of the off-reservation streams we're
talking about but it is not complete because preliminary decrees
have not been issued by the water court on all the drainages
that we will have off-reservation claims to.

But, that also raises a second interesting issue, and that is in
terms of researching instream flows on those off-reservation
streams, we're not as far as we are we the reservation streams.
And the question is whether there is any help available from you
or the Montana Fish and Game Commission, who has some instream
flow competency and funding to help out with that.

We want to cooperate, but we want to make sure that this data is
not a one-way street. We have a lot of good information that
we've been accumulating over the years on the issues up here,
but we want some help from the state, if it's going to be a
shared data cooperative approach to assembly of the information
that's pertinent.

MR, ROTH; I think that's one of the items that the meeting
between your technical staff and ours would probably tell us
about and that is what data you have presently available. That
doesn't mean that you give us access to the data at this
particular time but at least we would know what you have, and
the state's people can, I suppose, exchange what information we
presently have.

The fact, of course, as the Commision has discussed, your claims
to off-reservation instream flows does not indicate the position
by the Commission that we acknowledge that you have any claims
for instream flow rights and streams off the reservation, nor on
the reservation, for that matter. This is merely a fact finding
mission at this particular time and I don't want to imply at all
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that the Commission has taken a position that you have any such
rights but only that we are willing to negotiate about those, so
there is no misunderstanding as to what our position is at the
present time.

MR, PABLO: Tom, can you and Scott get together today
sometime and set up a meeting date?

MR. BATERIDGE: Fine.

MR. DECKER; What I have passing around to members here
is a list of the off-reservation basins that we've currently
filed objections to protect the off-reservation fisheries. And
I am just making it available for your information. I guess I
have a question, following your statement, do you know at this
point in time without the record recognizing that that would
mean that we would not have an instream flow right
off-reservation for fisheries purposes whether or not do you
know at this time if there is data available from Fish and
Wildlife... (inaudible).

MR. ROTH: I don't know. and I don't know that Scott
knows.

MR. BROWN: I gave this just a little thought, and I realize
that some objections were made on Flint Creek. The Department
of Fish, Wildlife and Parks, yes, has information for Flint
Creek, for Rock Creek, in fact for quite a number of tributaries
on the Clark Fork. And some of that information has been

communicated to the Forest Service. I've made a note here that
the technical people should discuss that and at such time I will
be better prepared to discuss with Tom where that kind of
information is available. We may be able to provide a full list
of where on these streams Fish, Wildlife and Parks has done some
work. As I look at this list, I think that they have done work
related to their Murphy's rights on the Middle Fork, the South
Fork, on Rock Creek, Clark's Fork above the Blackfoot.- So quite
a few of these, I can already say that the Fish and Game
Department, the state's Fish, Wildlife and Parks Department has
done some definitive work in these areas.

(Mr. Decker distributed information.)

MR. GOETZ: Mr. Chairman, just so eve:tybody knows the
background they might be familiar with it already these
objections are filed on these drainages pursuant to a
stipulation in the lawsuit that the Confederated Tribes have
pending against the state of Montana on the general
adjudication. It's pending in federal court now before Judge
Lovell and, years ago, when the tribes were not in negotiations,
that suit was filed to preliminarily enjoin the commencement of
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'the adjudication insofaras it affected the Confederated Tribes
rights. That preliminary injunction was settled with the
stipulation by which the BIA and the Tribes would file general
claims. And then there was essentially an agreement through the
water court that: voluntarily refrained from proceeding with'
preliminary decrees on the reservation, but off the reservation
the^-water court is proceeding. So with respect to those '
drainages, where preliminary decrees have been issued, the

' Tribes have made filings pursuant to that stipulation.. These
that were handed out were examples of those filed.

I might as well, Mr. Chairman, if I may,; I might as well, as
long as we are on the topic of the suit that came up last
time yesterday we received an opinion and order from Judge
Lovell putting that suit on stay. I guess you are well aware of
that suit because, now that I think about it, that was the
subject of discussion at one of- your last meetings. And that,
as you know, that the state through the Attorney General's
Office, moved to force the Tribes to either prosecute that suit
or have it dismissed. We resisted asking that the suit be
maintained on a stay basis pending these negotiations and Judge
Lovell has now put that suit on a stay basis.

One other thing, if I may, Mr. Chairman Urban, at the last
meeting you mentioned two suits. One was this suit and the
other you mentioned was a suit by the federal government
regarding, I think, the wildlife refuges on the reservation. I
am not familiar with that suit > >

"}
, j

MR. ROTH: I'm not either. 1 mean, I am "familiar with it
in the sense that it exists and I, someplace in ny notes, I even
have sort of an outline of what the federal government is
requesting, but as to the status, I don't know and maybe Mr.
Paulson would know, from the Attorney General's Office.

,MR. GOETZ: How about Mr. .Aldrich?

MR.ALDRICH: I am sorry, I was reading the order

MR. GOETZ: There was a reference in the last minutes by
Urban Roth to two federal suits. One of them was the suit I
]ust addressed...the Confederated Tribes against the state of
Montana. The other was to a federal suit, I gather, by the
Department of the Interior, I guess against the state of
Montana, Urban?

MR. ROIH: Yes, I don't-7-in reviewing my notes preparatory
for this meeting, I didn't have a caption on the notes, so I
didn't have time to go back into the litigation, I assume that

„ it is a,federal action against the state, and it dealt with the
Mpise Bison Range and various other wildlife refuges,.and
wnether or not li was intervenor in your suit, or an independent
suit, I just don^t recall. ^
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MR. ALDRICH: I don't know anything about it.

MR. GOETZ; Would you check that. Urban, for us and let us
know.

MR. ROTH: Yes.

MR. PABLO: Should we go on. I believe, the general
discussion on the Montana-Fort Peck compact? Gordon?

MR. MCOMBER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We are very
encouraged that you put this on the agenda. We're pretty elated
that the Commission has succeeded in finalizing a compact with
these Tribes. To back up a little, to give you a little
background. It took, I guess, about five years from the
beginning. The Port Peck Tribes had from the beginning
exhibited a very strong interest in a compact and so the
Commission zeroed in on that particular Tribe and moved
forward. During the time of the 1983 session we thought we had
arrived at an agreement for the compact; unfortunately,
however, that was not the case. We heard from the Attorney
General, from the Department of Natural Resources, and from the
Governor, and as a result of that communication, the Commission
very reluctantly decided not to submit that proposed compact to
the legislature at that time. We went back and just about
started over again, and wrote another compact. Many of the
issues have been resolved, but not all of them. That was
submitted to the 1985 Legislature and went I guess I can use
the word,.sailing, through both Houses, and was approved by the
Governor.

It was a learning experience for us, and we accept the fact now
that we have to involve other people in the state of Montana,
and specifically those other agencies that have people with
decision making authority and political clout with the
Legislature. The compact that we arrived at and we agreed upon,
I should tell you, that we there is one big difference one
of the differences between the final compact and the 1983
compact was that the 1985 compact was not submitted, to the
Congress for ratification. It had been assumed earlier that
that was -necessary and by mutual agreement, Montana statutes
were changed to eliminate that requirement. Therefore-that
compact was not submitted to the .Congress for ratification; part
of it was on marketing a very small, one small issue, and we
will talk to you about that in a little bit. I'm just going to
introduce,each of the main issues and then ask some involvement
from other people. Scott, could you sit up here at the'table?
Mr. Brown?

MR. BROWN: I'd have to sit next to Jim, and I really wanted
to avoid that.... (laughter).
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MR. ROTH: What did he do, jog this morning and forget to
take a shower?... (laughter)

MR. MCOMBER: Quantification was the big issue there, that
was the whole thing determining the amounts of water, agreeing
on the amounts of water the compact would allocate to the Fort
Peck Tribes, that was obviously the biggest and the toughest
question. We 1 say we, but I wasn't on the Compact Board at
that time but the technical people did a great deal of work
and finally compromised on a process that we agreed upon which
would ultimately-—ultimately led to the amount of water that
the compact specified. You've indicated an interest in this,
and I would like Scott to talk to you about the process that was
used, Mr. Brown, if you would please?

MR. BRCWN: Well, there were a lot of compromises, early
compromises, in determining the amount, but it was based on the
irrigability standards. And the data that were used to
determine irrigability were existing soil conservation service
surveys of the four counties there were three surveys of four
counties. As a matter of fact, at that time. Peg, was my
research assistant and she is more familiar with this than I am.

But after much discussion and attempting to take some short
cuts not turning work into sloppy work, but taking some short
cuts we trimmed the 2.1 million acre reservation down to

something workable by eliminating all lands above 2300 feet.
The Missouri River enters the Port Peck Reservation at about

2,000 feet elevation and I guess you could say, it was a
compromise part of the agreement to accept three hundred feet as
an acceptable lift so we drew a three hundred foot contour of
the reservation and that eliminated about one, well, roughly
two-thirds of the reservation from any further consideration.
Now, we knew that there would certainly be some irrigable lands
there, if they were litigating and if we were doing a full blown
PIA, but we simply had to get it down to something we could work
with. So the 700, or so, thousand acres that remained under
2300 feet were analyzed very carefully as to irrigability and we
accepted that capability class II, II and IV lands, as
determined by the SCS standards, were irrigable. By the way,
there were very few class IV lands, a very, very, small
percentage of them, I would say 90 or 95 percent of them were
cabability class II and III, so there is no mistake about them
being irrigable if you can find a water supply.

The second step, then, after determining irrigability was to go
through this title search or land ownership
analysis separating out lands that would clearly have reserved
water rights that is they belonged to a tribes or to
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allottees, or to the United States and those that belonged to
non-Indians and were in fee status, I suppose you could say
there were still some questions about the so called
Powers-Walton rights but we kind of shoved that aside for the
moment. We found below that that roughly 500,000 acres were
irrigable but that only 282,000 of them belonged to the Tribes
or, that-is, clearly^ had a reserved water right associated with
them. We then, after some technical work, found that a 3,6 acre
foot<per acre diversion rate was reasonable for that area and
that the consumptive use requirement in that area, because of
climate and soil factors, was 1,8 acre feet per acre.

Well, all of that translates to a total diversion right of 1,05
million, acre feet because the 282,000 X 3,6 gets you to just
less than a million, but we had to take into account the 10,000
acres that are being irrigated presently under the BIA project.
So that moved it up to slightly more than a million acre feet
for diversion requirement. The consumptive use requirement
being half of that 3,6 acre feet per acre, of course, made a
consumptive use right of 525,000 acre feet per year.
Of course, there were other considerations. I don't know if you
want me to get into those, where we had to I guess the last
thing I would say is that we wanted very much not to upset the
operation of the Fort Peck reservoir, there is a traditional
operation of Fort Peck reservoir that other mainstream
reservoirs depend on Garrison, Oahe, and on down the line and
the tribes were amenable to that the Fort Peck Tribes were
amenable to that so we have-a monthly diversion schedule that
allows us to distribute the water for those purposes recognized
in the compact in such a way that it does not interfere with the
traditional operation of Fort Peck. And that can't be
overemphasized that was very important to the United States
and to the state of Montana.

MR. MCOMBER; Well, this is quite a long compact and we are
trying to summarize. We would not mind spending all day with
you on it but we are just going to hit the high spots. At this
stage, does anyone else on the Commission want to comment on the
amount. Perhaps you had some questions on on that issue?

1 ^

MR. GOETZ: Mr. Chairman Scott your definition of the
tribal right or the Indian rights included rights that are
associated with lands that the tribes now that are held for
the tribes in trust, presently.

MR. BROWN: Yes.

MR. GOETZ: And lands that are held by Indian allottees that
are held in trust?

MR. BROWN: Yes.
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MR. GOETZ: And what about allotments that are held by
non-Indians that are traceable back to arguably to an
original Indian title and Indian water right.

MR. BROWN; We recognized that there could be some claims
for reserved water rights the so-called, what I call,
Powers-Walton rights but in fact, in our title searches and
our ownership analysis, we excluded those lands from the two
steps that we took. First, we determined if they were
irrigable, by using SCS data; step two was to eliminate those
lands that were in the hands of non-Indians fee patented lands
in the hands of Indians or, excuse me, in the hands of
non-Indians.

MR. GOETZ: So they're non-Indian rights. Now the
irrigation project, which is a BIA project, that's
allocable to the Indian right?

MR. BRCWN: Yes.

MR. GOETZ: Does that serve both Indians and non-Indians?

MR. BROWN: Okay, that was the one exception. In that area
where water from the project serves both members of the Tribes
and non-members, there was an exception there from the
situation you just raised.

MR. GOETZ: Who did the study on the land ownership and the
history, was that a joint study?

MR. BROWN: Well, Interior had been doing that all along,
but I can recall our staff and iiyself going to Billings on a
number of occasions, just to kind of keep so we knew what was
going on. We did not help fund the study, though. The BIA
offered to undertake that study. Is that accurate Bob? The
reason I am asking is that I don't know if the Tribes made any
contribution to that or not.

MR. DELK: No, you're right.

MR. GOETZ: May I ask, Mr. Chairman well who, physically,
who did the study? Were they BIA employees, or was it
contracted outside.

MR. DELK; No, it was done internally. All that land
ownership work was done internally by our title and records
people.

MR. PABLO; Dan, did you have a question?
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MR, DECKER: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Bob, in relationship to the
project at Fort Peck How did these lands that were identified
that.Scott talked about...What's the acreage of What's the
size of the project that we are talking about?

MR. DELK: I'm blank. It is about 10 - 12,000 acres seems
to me.

•MR. BROWN: It was between 10,200 and 10,400 acres and we
didn't- concern ourselves with how much of it served tribal
members and how much of it served non-tribal members. We just
said, in this case, the whole amount would be considered part of
the tribal rights just kind of stacked on top,

MR. GOETZ: Mr. Chairman. Who has jurisdiction over, under
that compact, over the project?

MR. BROWN: The BIA continues to have jurisdiction over the
operation of the project.

MR. MCOMBER: We're going to get into administration here in
a little bit which will answer some more of your questions then.

MR. PABLO: Before we go on to that In that compact, now,
that's final or does that go into a preliminary decree and the
the decree is open to challenge, or how does that work?

MS. RUNDLE: It will be in fact, that may have been done
this past week. Did the AG*s offide secure the signatures,
John?

MR. PAULSON; I don't know.

MS. RUNDLE: The notices have been well. Rich might know,
too well, they'll let me know eventually (laughter)

F®. ALDRICH: Tell US what you know, Marcia.

MS. RUNDLE: The notices were prepared and there were some
proposed changes, I think by Rich and by Reid Chambers, the
attorney for the Tribes. But the last word that I had from the
AG's office was that the notices and the compacts were being
filed. ..if not this week, within a very short time. ..with the
Water Court. • It will then be, according to state law, will be
entered into the preliminary decrees in those water basins.

- MR. GOETZ: Then what happens?

MR. ROTH: According to the amendments that were passed this
last legislature, the preliminary decree is open to objection.

MS. RUNDLE: But the terms of the compact may not be
modified without the written consent of the parties.
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MR. GOETZ; Mr. Chairman?

MR. ROTH: So, basically, we tried to resolve that due
process issue that you raised the last time, but without
compromising the agreement of the parties.

MR. PABLO: Jim?

MR. GOETZ: One of the things we raised last time there
was some discussion of at least a preliminary memorandum that
had been done and you promised to get that to us. Do you have
that?

MR. ROTH: I don't know if we have it, but I think it has
been mooted out to a large extent by the legislation that we
ultimately supported and that was passed. We believe that
whatever due process considerations might have arisen under the
old law have been finessed by the provisions of the new law. In
other words, there is notice, opportunity to be heard,
opportunity to object and, indeed, the compact could be declared
void. But the compact terms cannot be changed without the
agreement of the parties, so we've preserved the rights of due
process; but by the same token we've sprinkled holy water on
the compact and it can't be changed, except by agreement of the
parties so we think we have resolved both issues.

MR. GOETZ: I still would like to see your memo.

MR. ROTH: Sure, no problem.

MR. PABLO; Gordon?

MR. MCOMBER: Okay. I would tell you, Mr. Chairman,
that like I mentioned that we thought we were ]ust about to
conclude a compact and we had to back off and start over again.
One of the issues was the amount and the people who looked
at when you start talking about a million acre feet of
water and got a little excited it sounds like a lot of water
but, in that case, it amounts to about seven percent of the
water that runs out in the Missouri River after all the other
diverted rights have been exercised. So it was ]ust seven
percent of what was left and we find that if we tell the people
that after all the other uses have been taken care of, the
amount is only seven percent of what is left, it doesn't sound
like that great amount of water. Incidently, did Scott, did
we send copies of the you should have had copies of the
compact and the explanation sheet.

MR. BROWN; Yes, but if you would like to give the presiding
officer a nice bound copy, I have one with me.
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MR. MCOMBER: I think we should do that by all means
(laughter)

MR. BROWN; Would you like one?

MR. MCOMBER: ...(laughter)...(inaudible)... autograph it,
too,^

MR. BROWN: Okay. It's in the car; I will bring it out
afterwards.

MR. MCOMBER: Like I said, there are many issues in here and
I'm just going to hit the big ones. If you want to ask about
the others, you are prefectly welcome to do so.

Administration was another problem. The Attorney General was of
the opinion that administration should be by the state, and the
Tribes thought it should be by the Tribes. And the Tribes felt
that recourse should be in the federal court, and, of course,
the people of Montana, some of them, felt that it should be in
the state court.

This had been partially resolved in the 1983 compact but we
compromised a little more and developed a process that we could
all agree upon and that administrative process, the conclusion
was, the agreement was that the Tribes would administer the
tribal water right it was understood that they would develop a
tribal water code they would administer the tribal water
right, that the state of Montana would administer the non-Indian
rights on the reservation I am talking about on the
reservation and on streams adjacent to the reservation.
And that if there was a conflict between a tribal right holder
and a state right holder, that conflict would go to a three-man
board, three-person board, one person to be appointed by the
Governor, one by the Tribes, and the two would get together and
appoint the other. And a procedure was developed to take care
of the third appointee, if they couldn't agree. The compact
also provides that someone dissatisfied with the agreement, with
the conclusion of the three-man, three-person, board, had a
choice of going either to federal court or to state court, or,
if they both agreed, to tribal court.

So that,' in a nut shell, is how we handled the administration
problem. Now, we understand that you have a little different
situation here because there's a larger number of non-Indian
water right holders on the reservation than there was in Fort
Peck. As far as irrigation is concerned, on the Fort Peck
project—^-the Fort Peck Reservation outside of that project,
only about 600 acres were irrigated with tribal water by tribal
members, so I understand the ratio may be different here.
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But, in any rate, that is how we resolved the administrative,
administration question. Any questions or comments from
members?

MR, PABLO: I guess not. Go ahead.

MR. MCOMBER; The big issue from our point of view was the
protection of non-Indian water users. Now, after the
reservation was established and the Winters decision come
out as I indicated, the tribal members never irrigated very
much, but some non-Indians come in and either bought the land or
homesteaded and I believe you have about that same situation
here they acquired that land. And we were very concerned that
those rights be protected, and so we did work out an agreement
that protected all of those rights. The Tribes agreed to place
those rights, in effect, second. The tribal rights that had been
exercised are first on the list; next come the rights of those
non-Indian water users that put their water to use and acquired
a right under state law; and beyond that, future uses come
after that. So in effect, the Tribes subordinated to those
non-Indian water users the right to use the water they had been
using. Any questions on that? or comments?

MR. PABLO; I guess not.

MR. MCOMBER; The next big issue was water marketing, or
water leasing. And that Tribe, of course, sits in a very
advantageous position right on the Missouri River, and they
wanted an agreement with the state, whereby the state would
recognize their right to market, in effect, market that water.
It was very controversial, and everyone in the state of Montana
doesn't agree with the conclusion that we arrived at and some of
the other states have questioned that. That's kind of a problem
we have with the other states and, certainly, when if we
ever go to Congress for ratification of a compact in the future,
we're going to have to take into consideration the feelings of
those other states that very strongly disagreed on that
particular issue.

MR. PABLO: That the Tribes and the state both market water?

MR. MCOMBER: Marcia, if you want to go into that in a
little detail, that's your speciality.

MS. RUNDLE: Excuse me, what was your question?

MR, PABLO: I was asking about...

MR. MCOMBER; The water marketing provisions...

MR. PABLO: Yeh, the marketing provisions for the state and
the Tribes both...
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MS. RUNDLE: Well, the marketing provisions that are written
into the compact there are a couple of features that I would
mention.

One is that, first of all, it provides for joint
marketing:—that the state and the Tribes would in partnership
market water. Out of Fort Peck Reservoir or out of the Missouri
River, below Tort Peck reservoir, if either party has an
opportunity to market water, the compact provides that they
would offer the other party the opportunity to market with them.
That can, of course, be turned down; it is pretty much a right
of first refusal. Then, either party can go ahead if the other
party doesn't want to market with them.

The marketing is constrained by criteria that were written to
the compact. And those criteria mirror pretty much the criteria
that had been written into the new water policy act that the
legislature passed this last session. The criteria in the water
policy act restrain the state's own marketing and provide that
the state, before it markets water, must meet certain criteria.
Those s^e criteria, or ones very similar, were written into the
compact to similarly constraint marketing jointly by the Tribes
and the state, or by the Tribes alone.

MR. GALT: There is also a level there that they have to go
the Legislature to....

MS. RUNDLE; Yes, one of the things that is also written
into the compact is a cap on the,amount of water that can be
marketed by the Tribes. When the Legislature passed the water
policy act, it provided that, at the present time, the state is
authorized through the Department of Natural Resources to market
up to 50,000 AFY. The compact provides that the Tribes, the
Fort Peck Tribes, are authorized to market water in that amount
as well. But, it further provides that if that ceiling on the
state's authority to market increases, the Tribes' authority
will also increase.

And water that will be marketed the provision that Senator
Gait was referring to is that any diversions that come our of
the Missouri River above the Fort Peck Reservoir would require
Legislature approval in addition to meeting the terms of the
compact.

MR. ROTH: Marcia, I think one of the questions that was
raised was there was some out-of-state opposition or criticism
to marketing.

MS. RUNDLE: Yes.

MR. ROTH: Okay. I think, Mr. Pablo, or someone wanted more
elaboration than that. Didn't you?
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MR. PABLO: Yes.

MR. ROTH: I would too, because I wasn't present at that
particular meeting,

MS, RUNDLE; Do you want to talk about that, Mr. Chairman?
•V «

MR. MCOMBER; Okay. Marcia and I were invited to attend the
meeting of the Western States Water Council, and this included
participants from all the western states. They jumped on that
marketing provision, particularly California, because they have
been San Diego, California, specifically because they have
been using,' the city has been using water that actually,
probably, or, I guess it does belong to^tribes under the
Winters- decision. And they are concerned that if we set a
precedent, that they are going to have to start buying that
water. I know. Urban would probably advise me not to say things
as plainly as I do...(laughter),,

MR. URBAN: Now that's what they said at the meeting,
wasn't it?

MR. MCOMBER: So that is their concern and two or three
other states had that same concern. But it is rather
interesting, that meetingwent on for three days, and the
compact with the Fort Peck Tribe was the chief item of interest,
and I think we did a pretty good job with them, explaining the
fact that the Winters doctrine is the,winters doctrine and we
just have to accept, sometimes, the facts, of life. There was
only one provision Marcia, just briefly tell them about this
provision that requires Congressional approval, would you, on
marketing.

MS. RUNDLE: Together with the bill what was our House
Bill number? It was, no, our Senate Bill number was 467; that
was the compact. But concurrently with the passage of that, the
legislature passed Senate Joint Resolution 41, which is a
petition to Congress to authorize the Tribes to enter into water
agreements that have been authorized, by the
compact essentially, seeking federal legislation. And the
provision that were suggested and agreed to by the Tribes and
the State are included as part of the compact and were passed by
the Legislature as Joint Resolution 41. Some of those
provisions essentially mirror the Mineral Development Act, that
I think Senator Melcher was a co-sponsor.of in '82.

MR^ MCOMBER: So, we have an understanding with the Tribes
that we will support this legislation. However should the
legislation fail, it is not going to nullify the compact. But
back to your concern, Mr. Chairman, that's where we expect the
other states to take a run at us on that particular issue.
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MR, RUNDLE: Mr. Chairman, would you like to mention the
Missouri Basin States? They

MR, MCOMBER: Right. There was another meeting of the
Missouri River Basin States this would be more downstream
states---and Av.e, and let's see, who was there. Jack, and Ave,
and Would you people like to comment on any questions that
come up on that issue there or any others?

MR, LINFORD: One of the questions they have is whether or
not this compact impinged on the stored flow at Fort Peck, Of
course, it doesn't, as Marcia explained to you. Another
question they had was how, or whether that we were setting a
precedent that would affect all the Missouri River Basin
States, And I think they'd overlooked the fact that Wyoming,
has had a settlement of water rights, reserved water rights,
that do affect those states the same, as part of the Missouri
system.

The questions they asked were pretty good questions, but I think
after we had our discussion that they thought that the compact
did not infringe on their rights, I guess although they said
they reserved the right, like everybody else does, to come back
and raise other questions, after they went home and talked to
their constituents. But we did have a broad representation of
the Missouri River states, I think about the only one that was
missing was Minnesota.

They have been concerned, as you know, about the sale of water
South Dakota had proposed and that the sort of thing how this
might affect that, I think it was a relief to them to know that
the stored water was not in the compact. Although, they have to
pay for that stored water, so some of them viewed that with
mixed emotions that,,if we had sold, if we had been able to
compact stored water, it would reduce the cost to the other
states of keeping water stored at Fort Peck,

MR, MCOMBER; Jack or Audrey, do you want to comment on the
reaction from the other states?

MR, GALT: Well, that was pretty much it. Outside of, even
the attorney that represented Wyoming in their long and arduous,
expensive suit on the Wind River thing, even he said that, by
golly, you'd better think of negotiations before you go to the
litigation thing. Although he admitted that one suit put all
his kids through college (laughter),,,,

MR, PABLO: Okay, I think I might of missed one point on the
Fort Peck compact that the tribes waived their future use
right?
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MS. RUNDLE: Waived their future use right?

MR. PABLO: Or what was it what basis?

MR. MCOMBER: Are you talking about subordination to
existing users.

' MR. BRCWN: I think that is what he means...

MR. PABLO: I kind of got turned around there someplace.

MR. MCOMBER: Okay, I'm not very articulate, so you Scott,
why don' t you explain that situation.

MR. BROWN: Well, I think you explained it well. But,
sometimes it needs to because it is, it's uncommon for tribes
to subordinate their reserved, the future exercise of their
reserved water rights to existing uses.

Perhaps it would help for you to realize that there are about
33,000 acres of irrigated lands, a few municipalities, and some
insubstantial commercial and industrial uses on what we call the
north-south tributaries. They are the tributaries that come
into the Missouri River through the Port Peck
Reservation Porcupine Creek, Wolf Creek, Poplar River, and Big
Muddy Creek, principally.

Those,33,000 acres, plus a few other incidental uses, that have
been established over the last-70 or 80 years, but in fact are
really all junior to the 1888 priority date of the Port Peck
Tribes, were willingly subordinated by the tribes, only with
respect to the tribes future exercise of their reserved water
right on those streams not on the Missouri River, ^ust on
those tributaries.

So if a tribal member wishes to irrigate on the Poplar River in
the future, the Tribe has, whether he likes it or not, forfeited
for him his 1888 priority date. He now essentially has a 1985
priority date, because everyone who has exercised a use from the
early 1900's through December 31, 1984, and.have a valid state
water right is now senior to those non-exercised reserved water
rights. Does that clear that up?

MR. PABLO: Yes, that is kind of what-I understood, but I
wanted to make sure that is what I thought I heard,

MR. BROWN: Okay.

MR. MCOMBER: There is kind of two sections to the marketing
provisions. One is the marketing of water on the Missouri River
and the other one pertains to the water in the tributaries and
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boundary streams on the reservation. So there's two different
areas there, that water from the Missouri might be sold in large
amounts to someone else. But there is a provision whereby, if a
non-Indian wants to expand his operation and wants a good, clear
title to that water, he can go to the proper authorities and,
assumedly for a price, obtain that right. That gets a little
complicated, too.

< ' >

MR. GOETZ: Mr. Chairman, I know that in reading the compact
that there are special exceptions, it seems, throughout on the
Milk,River. First, I'm not sure where it is. Is the Milk River
on the east or the west boundary of the reservation and why the
exceptions for the Milk River? Why the special treatment?

MR. MCOMBER; Well, from what Scott tells me, the Tribes
volunteered that concession from the very beginning just leave
her out

MR. BRC3WN; A very Small portion of the Port Peck
Reservation intersects with the Milk River. It meanders but as
the crow flies it's probably only about 15 to 20 miles of the
very lower portion of the Milk River just before it dumps into
the Missouri. That's the southwest corner of the reservation
and, as Mr. McOmber said, one of the first overtures made by the
Fort Peck Tribes was to come into the negotiations and say "We
recpgnize the Milk River is a real headache for the state of
Montana. We have an 1888 priority date on it, but we don't want
to complicate matters. We will remove it from these
discussions; in other words, we won't make any claims on the
Milk River, at any time, now or in the future". That simplified
things, so

MR. GALT; Jim, I am sure that you realize that's the most
over-appropriated river in the whole state of Montana. I don't
know whether there is enough water to claim.

MR. BROWN: But it should also be stated that, as far as I
am aware, all of the irrigated lands along the Milk River where,
30 to 40 years ago because of water quality problems, the BIA
stopped applying water from the Milk River to those lands on the
reservation and instead developed some pumping and diversion
structures to bring Missouri River water up to those lands. So,
while it may seem to be a rather a significant concession, I
think they were not giving up a great deal and may, in fact,
have been doing themselves a favor because there are water
quality problems there. So I guess we were doing each other a
favor and simplifying the negotiations by eliminating the Milk
River.

MR; ALDRICH: Mr. Chairman. You probably really need to
talk to the Fort Peck Tribes as to why they made some of these
concessions. But, I think that certainly entering into that
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determination is the fact that there are four Indian tribes that
claim water out of the Milk River and just avoiding the
situation of setting tribe against tribe in claiming those
waters depending on priority dates

MR. BRCWN; I should have mentioned that.

MR. ALDRICH; The Blackfeet, the Rocky Boy's, and the Fort
Belknap Reservations all would be asserting Milk River claims
with varying priority dates. And there also, of course, are
international concerns on the Milk. River system. It is covered
by the International Boundary Waters Treaty.

MR. PABLO: Gordon?

MR MCOMBER: Okay, I think there are a few minor provisions
here. There is one that we agreed that the income of^ any water
marketing by the Tribes will not be taxed by the state. There
was an understanding that the Tribes could establish instream
flows to maintain fish and wildlife resources in the North -
South tributaries. But that water that they claim for instream
flows would come out of the consumptive use figure established
through the compact. The compact I'll just read this, it's
easiest "Existing uses of water by Indians on the Reservation
and future domestic uses of water and stockwater ponds up to 20
acre feet are protected with a priority date of 1888. Further,
future uses of the Tribal Water Right will be subordinated to
existing non-Indian users of water on the Reservation and all
future domestic uses of water and stockwater ponds up to 20 acre
feet." So, if somebody wants to go in there and build a house
and water a couple of horses, there is protection on that amount
of water. I think that's kind of a thumbnail sketch, do
you do you Commission members want to add anything?

MR. GALT: Have you touched on ground water in the compact?

MR. MCOMBER: Right. Do you want ?

MR. GALT: No, I can't. Right off the top of my head, I
can't

MR. MCOMBER: Scott, do you want to touch on the ground
water situation.

MR.' BROWN: Well, because not much is known about the ground
water in that area, it caused some problems for us. The total
right, the total diversion,right is 1.05 million acre-feet.
However, in any year, no more than 950,000 acre-feet-per-year
may come from surface water sources. That means at some time in
the future, if the Tribe .is exercising its full uses of its
water right, it may not divert more than 950,000 acre-feet of
surface water. The remainder will have to come out of
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grouridwater. Now, that doesn't mean they have a cap. Their
reserved water right is not limited to 100,000 acre-feet of
ground water. We don't know how much groundwater is there. Any
mix of surface water and ground water, is allowable; but we do
have, what we feel is a protective provision in the
compact protective from both our standpoint and theirs that
the quality of any groundwater source cannot be depleted, or
degraded, and no acquifer may be^mined. So, at some point in
the future,' whether that acquifer is "adjacent to the reservation
or on the reservation, we're trying to avoid degrading the
quality of those acquifers or permanently mining them, so. That
determination will have to be made later, as to whether or not
that's being done.

MR. PABLO: Jim.

MR. GOETZ: Well, let's assume you've got somebody within
the boundaries of the reservation, who drills a well to use
water for irrigation who administers that?

MR. BROWN: The Tribes.

MR. GOETZ: Throughout

MR. BRCWN:. But with the special provision Marcia, would
you like to add something about that provision the kind of
groundwater control?

MS. RDNDLE: Well, it depends on if it's a non-Indian user
who is drilling the well for irrigation water, its different
than if he is drilling the well for domestic use. As you know,
if you aren't using more than 100 gallons per minute, there
isn't even a notice requirement. Rather you file a completion,
a notice of completion

MR. GOETZ: With the state.

MS. RUNDLE: with the state, but a non-

MR. GOETZ: Is that true of Indians and non-Indians?

MR. ROTH: Well, it would be up to the Indian water code.

MS. RUNDLE: Yes, but essentially, non-Indian water users
would still apply to the state for permits for ground water.
Indian water users would apply to the Tribes and, pursuant to
their water code, would receive permits.

MR. GOETZ: How do you know which groundwater is Indian and
which isn't?
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MR. ROTH: Wellr there is a provision that you won't ^if
use of the groundwater would unreasonably interfere basically
with the acquifer that you can't that the state nor the Tribe,
neither one, could grant the permit without the consent of the
other,

MR. BRCWN: And they were just as interested in that
provision as we were.

V r

-MR. ROTH: Yeh. They wanted to protect water quality and
that was the quid,> pro quo ^there. ^

MS. RUNDLE: I think what you are getting at is .that , it
would have to be an after-the-fact determination. The first
time that the problem occured you would the appropriate party
would challenge the other's permitting of that well that they
thought impinged on their water.

MR. GOETZ: I'm trying to get at, basically, the
administration issue of who's got control and who administers
the groundwater.

MR. ROTH: It's a dual it hasn*t been specifically
addressed. If it's going to be a tribal water right either
licensed by or granted by the tribe, then it's administered by
the tribe. If it's one granted by the state, it's administered
by the state. But either side has the right to challenge the
other's granting of the right on the basis that it unreasonably
interferes, or affects the water quality.

MR. GOETZ: If you have an Indian, for example, who has fee
land,, drills a major well for irrigation purposes is it the
irrigator's determination of who he or she applies to that
determines whether it's an Indian right or non-Indian?

MS. RUNDLE: The tribal water right is defined in the
compact to include all uses of water by tribal members, by
persons within the Fort Peck Irrigation Project, by those
successors-to-allottees that are claiming .a Walton-Powers right,
and by, any leasee of the Tribes; so, anyone within that
definition would have to apply to the Tribes. The state will
not grant permits to any of those persons for state permits.

.MR. ROTH: But I guess his question,.Jim's question is
thisr—if a non-member who doesn't fall within any of those

.definitions wants to use groundwater-—to hedge his bet, he,
would probably apply to the Tribe^for a license or permit and,
also to the state.

MR.^ PABLO: Is that where that three-party board would
become involved, in the challenge?
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MR, ROTH: Well, if there is a conflict between a non-member
or, a tribal and a non-tribal right, yeh. But I think we are

talking about that they if an applicant for a water right
wants to insure the fact that he has a water right, he would

-probably hedge his bet by applying to the Tribe for a permit,
for the use of groundwater, just to insure the fact that the
amount of water allocated to the Tribes that cannot come from a
surface source, wouldn't ultimately infringe upon his right to
use in perpetuity that water.

MRS. ROTH: Mr. Chairman.- You-are talking about an Indian
with a-water, or who is trying, to if he is an Indian with
fee land, is he incorporated under this same law?

MR. MCOMBER: Any right he files on would have to be out of
the Indians allocation, including the groundwater and the
surface water.

MR. GOETZ; If you have a situation where the groundwater
supply is being depleted, and you've got competing Indian and
non-Indian uses, it's conceded under this compact that the
Indian groundwater is part of the tribal reserved rights with
the 1888 priority date, and so would take seniority there.

MR. ROTH: If, indeed, there wasn't enough to go around,
probably, unless it was a subordinated right or, I mean, a
right to which the tribal right was subordinated.

I

MR. GOETZ: Well, that subordination seems to me to say that
if you've got a reserved the tribes are saying, if the rights
are not developed now well that's on the upper tributaries
that's doesn't apply to the ground water

MR. BROWN: Well, I said the tributaries, but Urban is
correct. There are some of those existing uses that the
Tribes subordinated to are groundwater, current ground water
uses, from acquifers we know nothing about. So you see, we
couldn't there will be some disputes that this board, this
joint board, will have to deal with and some determinations made
by the board in the future as to whether or not an acquifer is
being depleted.

MR. PABLO: Any questions?

- MR." ROTH; One remark, I would 1 guess, a few remarks, Mr.
^Chairman,{ if I may, is that we believe that the reason for our
' success in the Port Peck compact negotiations was the
willingness on the part of both parties to seek a solution
whenever we had reached apparent impasse. We didn't permit
impasse to evolve into a muleish situation where neither party
was willing to move. As a result, we always attempted to remain
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flexible and be as creative as we could to circumvent what

appeared' to be unalterable positions of the other, and to
compromise those areas of conflict. .Also, I think, both the
Tribes and the Compact Conunission developed an understanding of
the political hurdles that the other side had to surmount in
order to obtain approval of the compact by their res^ctive
constituencies. And we tried to work>with those political
realities in .arriving at a compact that'would meet those
political exigencies as well as the interests of both parties to
succeed in the negotiations as much as they possibly could. So
I would like to offer those as observations that I have of why
we succeeded in these negotiations!

MR. PABLO: I was-gonna when we first began talking about
negotiations the first one that failed was a very big concern.

MR. GOETZ: Mr. Chairman, how long did negotiations take. I
think it has been mentioned, about five years how intense were
the meetings, how many per year or per month. We need a
feeling, in other words, of what kind of process we are getting
into.

MR. MCOMBER; Well, we kind of worked up to kind of a high
pitch in 19 83 and then when they were temporarily suspended
after that it was damn near two years before we really got up
to steam again. And then, those last week we devoted well,
you got a letter asking, suggesting, that,, you know, that we put
our negotiations with the other tribes on the back burner until
we finished this. We worked, just about full time, the
Commission did, for the last three or four months on that
compact.

MR. BROWN; Three or four months?

....(laughter)....

MR. ROTH: There was an awful lot of work done in those
first two years of negotiations so much of the technical data
had been accumulated land ownership a lot of those initial
issues. Sort of the data base had been acquired, so that when
Chairman McOmber retained, the Commission retained my services
what we really are talking about is some ma3or adjustments
of sort of conceptual approaches as to how ^this thing- is going
to work and that, in time, didn't take very .long in the sense
that it happened all within a year, basically, or less than a
year maybe. But so much of the work had already been done, the
data base had already been gathered, that one can't look at
those last, that last time period as Being definitive of the
time that's required to reach a compact.
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MR. MCOMBER: Excuse me just a minute Scott, we got the
compact finished, we signed off on it and the Tribe did, in the
middle of the legislative session. The legislature wasn't happy
with us at all. I doubt that we would ever get away with it
again. So, in the future we must look to having our agreement
finalized prior to the session with enough time to bring the
legislators up_ to speed on it. And a lot of other people in the
state too. f Scott, excuse me.

MR.' BROWN: I ]ust want to remind you, you* re a farmer and
you're used to working daylight 'til dark. That three or four
months, we really concentrated a hundred percent of our efforts
from about October through April and, before that, as Mr. Roth
pointed out we had spent two years, during 1981 and 82, probably
a third of our time on the Fort Peck negotiations, because they
showed a great promise of reaching a successful

MR. MCOMBER; I wasn't telling anyone that you were laying
around, Scott.

...(laughter)...

MR. BROWN: No, No I was saying, I think three or four
months is pretty conservative.

MR. MCOMBER; I think that you must appreciate the fact that
this that the life of the compact was extended for two years
and that I Senator Gait would know as much about this as
anyone, because he is still in there But if we,go back there
empty-handed the next time, I think we are going to have some
problems. Aren't we. Jack?

MR. GALT: Yes, we will.

MR. MCOMBER: We would like to prioritize our efforts zero
in on those tribes or federal agencies that want to do the
same. We have to, of course, keep up our communications with
everyone, but if you really want to sit down and get to business
with us, we will guarantee the time to do that.

MR, PABLO: Any other questions or comments? I heard
someone suggesting that it's time for a lunch break. That took
care of number one on the agenda. Do you want to give any
similarities and differences between Fort Peck and this
reservation?

MR. GOETZ; Well, maybe, Mr. Chairman, maybe we ought to
take a.few minutes and ask what you perceive to see as common
ground between Fort Peck and this reservation and the
differences.

MR. MCOMBER: Would you prefer to comment on that. Urban?

-38-



MR, ROTH: This is really a thumbnail sketch, but I some
of the similarities are: both reservations have been opened and
there have been considerable incursions,into the reservation by
non-membersl This'is more extensive on the Plathead than it was
on the Fort Peck, but never-the-less, it is an item of

,commonality between them.

Both have government sponsored irrigation projects on them.
There are large non-Indian, non-member'populations within both
reservations, although the proportion of the non-members on the
Plathead is greater than that on the Fort Peck.
Both one of the primary purposes of both reservations was to
establish an agriculatural industry as the dominant base upon
which the .tribes would gradually gain self support. And both
have developed sophisticated forms of self-government. We were
not dealing with unsophisticated tribal governments; both have
very well developed tribal governments that have the support of
their constituency. And perhaps your tribes are even more
advanced in that regard than are the Fort Pecks. But there are
a great deal of similarities, there's a great deal of
sophistication. Those are some of them, obviously not all of
the similarities.

The differences are: you have differences in terrain here. You
do not have the broad rolling plains that are extant in the Fort
Peck reservation. Here your tribal lands extend from about
10,000 feet above sea level down to about 3,000 feet above sea
level. " They range from timber and mountainous lands to very,
very level valley lands which are amenable to irrigation. Then
you have some of your lands in the western region that are quite
dry, and probaly lend themselves to grazing more than irrigation
farming.

On this reservation, you have historical dependency, at least
one tribe has historical dependencies on fishing. In addition,
your treaty has reserved the exclusive right of fishing within
the streams that border or run through the reservation, that's
a.difference and a significant difference.

There's also a special legislation that has reserved from
location or allotment sites that are principally valuable for
power sites.

You have various federal enclaves within the reservation the
Moise, the Bison range. I don't know that that is particularly
dissimilar from Fort Peck, except that I think they're more
extensive here.

You are, you have I mean the state, did exercise its right to
exercise civil jurisdiction over the tribes in certain areas.
The. state this,is the Qnly reservation that; the state of
Montana exercised that rignx; so thaV s a difference.
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I would say that there is more homogeneity between the tribes
within the Flathead reservation and the dominate non-member
population here. This is a fact that has been statistically
recorded. I don't know how many full-blood members you have,
but I suspect that it's less than 175. I think that that*
proportion of _full-blooded members'^is less extensive than that
in the Fort Peck.

Those are some of the differences that I perceive, and I am sure
that someo|ne else might have other differences.

MR. PABLO: Yeh. I think that wasn't civil jurisdiction;
it was criminal jurisdiction that the state's got.

MR. ROTH: Excuse me?

MR. PABLO; I said, it wasn't civil jurisdiction, it was
criminal.

MR. ROTH: Well, don't you have a haven't you subjected
yourselves to the divorce and the adoption laws of the state?

MR. DECKER: Domestic relations Mr. Chairman can be

handled both places. Essentially, almost all of the domestic
relations and ...(inaudible)... laws is handled for tribal
members and Indians is handled in tribal, court now.

MR. ROTH: I see.

MR. DECKER: But it was a limited it was really limited as
far as civil jurisdiction. It specifically excluded alot of
civil areas, like hunting and fishing.

MR. ROTH: Right. But I thought that certain domestic
relations were included in the

• MR. DECKER: Yes. But, for the most part, now because of
the--,-like the Indian Child Welfare Act, for instance as an
example, adoptions and foster placements and so-forth, there is
almost exclusive tribal jurisdiction. So there has been some
changes since the proclamations.

MR. ROTH: Perhaps we could ask you what you perceive as
similarities and differences.

MR; GOETZ: Mr. Chairman. One of the major differences I
see is the pervasive nature of the Flathead Irrigation Project
on this reservation, which is one of the reasons we set that as
an agenda item. And we will address that, I guess, this
afternoon. Beyond that, I am not sure. I don't have much to
say about that. You may, Dan.
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MR, DECKER: Mr. Chairman, I think Urban probably hit on
most of the items, but I agree with Jim, I think the biggest
difference is the presence of the irrigation project and the
size in comparison to the project at Fort Peck. The other
significant differences, of. course, which you already mentioned
is the strong hunting and fishing rights that are in ouir-
treaties and the exclusive'nature of'them is different than the
...(inaudible)... on Port Peck. So, -I would think those are
probably the two very significant differences.

MR'. PABLO; Should we break for lunch would 1:00 or 1:30
be better?

MR. ROTH: Oh, Mr. Chairman, if I may. Mr. Goetz asked me
about the federal suit that I made reference to in the other
meeting, and I talked to Rich Aldrich with regard to some notes
I had regarding the federal complaint. And he advises me that
most likely that is one of the seven lawsuits that is presently
stayed under the Adsit decision.

MR. ALDRICH: Mr. Chairman. Mr. .Roth's notes were correct
that that complaint discusses all of the various federal water
rights that would be asserted, like for Moise, for the Flathead
Irrigation Project, for the Tribes for whatever purpose. And I
am fairly confident that would be the lawsuit that was filed by
the Department of Justice on behalf of the Tribes to adjudicate
all the water rights, and it is in the same status as the other
lawsuits.

MR. PABLO: Well, how about we recess until 1:30.

Recessed at 12:15 and Reconvened at 1:30 p.m.

MR. PABLO: I'll call the meeting back to order. And with
that, are there any questions concerned on this number one that
we read on our letter to the Commission. If not we will go to
number three. That's the tribal explanation of the purpose and
outcome of the Tribes' ,recent litigation against the Flathead
Irrigation Project. Jim?

MR. GOETZ: Do you want to hear about this?

MR. PABLO: Maybe they don't want to hear about it.

...(laughter)..

MR. ROTH: Well, we don't want you to beat your chest, but
go ahead and tell us.

...(laughter).
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MR. GOETZ: I know Marcia was at the hearings, and I don't
know to what extent you've been briefed. So I'll give you a
brief overview and if there are any questions let me know.

In the middle of July, because of the drought situation,, the
fisheries problems were called to the attention of the tribal
council and toward the end of the month the Council took a
position that we should enter into negotiations with the
Flathead Irrigation Project to ensure that there are certain
minimum instream flows in the major streams for protection of
the "brood" fisheries. And, we gave FIPP and the Portland area
office of the BIA notice that if we couldn't reach some
agreement on releasing certain minimum instream flows, that we
would go to court to enforce those rights and we had a
negotiation session. The Portland area office appointed a
person to come in and talk.

Our view of what happened, and I think the record bears us out,
is that Flathead Irrigation Project which, incidently, is a BIA
controlled entity, would not agree to releases of the instream
flows that we had requested based on our biological opinions.
And they would also not suggest alternate minimum instream flows
would they would recommend and abide by to protect the fish. So
we went to Federal Court Judge Lovell in'Helena on the, I think
It was the 31st of July or the first of August, for a temporary
restraining order based on tribal aboriginal fishing rights as
guaranteed by the 1855 Hellgate' Treaty. And we made it clear
that we were going only for the purpose of the drought, for the
purpose of protecting the fishery for this season. We didn't
want this construed as a general water adjudication, as I
pointed out earlier this morning, because it was an emergency
situation and we used the "quick and dirty" methodology called
the "tennant method" to access the instream flow recommendations
that we needed and we provided affidavits with the necessary
technical information.

Based on our presentation in the temporary restraining order
hearing which, in a sense, was ex parte, that is with only us
applying, but we gave the FIPP .notice and so the U. S. Attorney
was there with the BIA solicitor and also the Joint Boards
were somehow obtained notice and they were represented by a
Helena counsel at the hearing. But we basically did the
presentation and Judge Lovell granted the temporary restraining
order, although he didn't endorse our particular figures. He
just directed that there be waters released during the interim
and> the procedure then will be within ten days to hold a more
formal preliminary hearing with all parties having the right to
call witnesses and be heard.

That preliminary injunction hearing was then scheduled for, I
think it was, Friday the 9th. We entered into negotiations with
the United States to see if we could resolve the issues for the
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purpose of the present season and obviate the need for the
preliminary injunction hearing. At the temp at the first
hearing, the temporary restraining order hearing, the Joint
Boards, through their counsel, moved to intervene as defendants,
which we resisted. But after the hearing the federal judge
granted them intervention status, so while the Joint Board was a
party, our view was that the FIPP, the irrigation project is
controlled by the federal government, so they are the necessary
party and the one that we dealt with.

We negotiated between the temporary restraining order and the
preliminary injunction hearing with the federal government. We
made a cautious decision, for which we have been criticized by
the Joint Boards, not to include the Joint Boards in that
discussion for two reasons; one is that the Joint Boards don't
control the system, and two is that we didn't see any meaningful
prospect of reaching an agreement with the Joint Boards because
of the hostilty, because at the hearing they indicated that they
flatly would not recognize tribal fishing rights and water
rights. And we just didn't think we had time enough to fool
around with that aspect of negotiations while still getting
ready for the preliminary injunction hearing.

Shortly the hearing, by the way was rescheduled, cancelled or
continued from the 9th to the 12th, which was Monday, and over
that weekend we were able to reach an agreement with the federal
government, which basically provided that the instream flows
that our biologists had recommended would be implemented and a
team of hydrologists and biologists, one from the BIA or
USGS in terms of hydrologists, BIA fisheries personnel and
our resource people would get together and work out schedules
and modify, if need be, in terms of what the instream flows
would be. We were careful to point out that this was not a
general adjudication and we provided that the agreement would
lapse at the end of October. So, it's for this season only.

Just before the hearing, the State of Montana moved to intervene
as a defendant in the case, and moved to dismiss on the grounds
that this is a, was a, general adjudication and that
jurisdiction should be in state court. And the Joint Boards
also moved to dismiss the case on those grounds. So we had the
hearing on the 12th of we resisted the state's motion to
intervene because we didn't think it was a state adjudication.
And we argued the general dismissal issue and we said that we
had no objection to dismissing, because we had our agreement
with the feds. They control the project and they have agreed to
provide the flows. That's all we ever wanted; and so we
suggested as well the feds suggested that the case was
moot. And after the hearing that morning, basically that's what
the federal judge decided.
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He granted the state's motion to intervene, denied the
preliminary injunction because there was a resolution of the
issue and dismissed the case. And so that's the basic technical
aspect our goal, as I have said, was to ensure that certain
minimum flows stay in the streams to protect the fishery. And
our basic foundation for a theory was based on the "tribal
treaty fishing rights" and the aboriginal fishing rights. And I
think, Marcia, you were there for both hearings, weren't you?

MS. RUNDLE: Yes.

MR. GOETZ: And, I assume that you have had access to the
pleadings to the extent that they may be pertinent. I don't
know that that suit has much to do with these negotiations, but
we thought you should be apprised of that suit, and what our
purpose was in bringing it,

MR. PABLO; Any questions? ...(pause)... You got by cheap.
...(laughter)...

If.there isn't, we can go on to No. 3 the general discussion
of the Flathead Irrigation and Power Project. For that, I'm
going to ask Teresa to go over the background of the project so
the Commission will understand it a little bit more,

->

MS, WALL-MCDONALD: Okay, I will be happy to do so. I plan
to present these facts about the Flathead Irrigation Project. I
will briefly address the early legislation, the land status and
other pertinent facts, I am obligated to inform you that I am
not doing this as a representative of the Flathead Irrigation
Project, nor am I stating the formal position of the Bureau of
Indian Affairs. I am merely providing general information at
the request of the Confederated Tribes. For your information,
Auggie Miller is the acting Project Engineer. He told me that
if I said anything wrong, he would hit me over the head. So
....(laughter).

By the Treaty of Hellgate, the Flathead Kootenai and Pend d'
Orielles Indians ceded to the United States all their right,
title and interest in their aboriginal homeland. A tract of
land was reserved from the land ceded, for the exclusive use and
occupation of the Tribes. That homeland is commonly known as
the Flathead Indian Reservation. In iry discussion I will be
referring to this map. This is an outline of the Flathead
Indian Reservation the white areas are fee status lands and
the gray areas are lands held in trust.

Subsequent to the Hellgate Treaty of 1855, the Flathead
Allotment Act was passed on April 23, 190 4. This act allotted
lands to the Indians and also authorized a formal survey to
determine the feasibility of an irrigation project within the
Reservation boundaries. The actual irrigation survey began oi
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July 8, 1907 and the final report was filed November 12, 1907.
The final report found that the irrigation possibilities were
favorable on the Flathead Reservation.

Therefore the Office ,of iniSian Affairs and the D. S. Reclamation
Service entered into an agreement in 1907 whereby the
Reelama_tipn_ Service furnished engineering and field construction
expertise, while the Office of india'n Affairs retained ultimate
authority for approval of the construction plans. The
Reclamation Service provided construction and design assistance
until 1924 when the irrigation project was formally transferred
back to the Indian Irrigation Service. The Bureau the
Flathead Project has always been under the jurisdiction of the
Bureau of Indian Affairs.

The Act of March 3, 1909 provided the first Congressional
appropriation for beginnng construction of the Flathead
Project. Subsequent acts have provided continuing
appropriations for the construction work. Prior to 1916, the
appropriations were reimbursed from the sale of tribal land and
timber belonging to the Flathead Tribes. The Act of 1916
provided that the tribal funds previously utilized should be
reimbursed and that payment for irrigation works should be made
by the landowner whose land benefitted by the system.

By 1914, 152,000 acres of land within the Reservation boundaries
were classified as irrigable, of which 97,000 acres had been
allotted to Tribal members and 48,000 had been entered by
homesteaders.

Congress has continued since the 1900's to appropriate
reimburseable construction dollars for both the irrigation and
power systems that are operated by the Flathead Project. The
total federal investment as of December, 19 82 in the Flathead
Project irrigation system is roughly 12 million dollars. Of the
total amount invested in irrigation, the unpaid reimburseable
federal investment is $6,055,267.

Today the Irrigation Project supplies irrigation water to
approximately 2,600 water users who reside within the
Reservation boundaries. The irrigation system has 14 major
storage reservoirs within the reservation boundaries with a
total storage capacity of approximately 157,000 acre feet.
Twelve of these storage reservoirs, which encompass oven 9,000
acres, and the main water supply sources are all located on
Indian Trust lands owned by the Confederated Salish and Kootenai
Tribes.

There are some 108 miles of main supply canals and about•1^000
miles of irrigation distribution canals and laterals, with ovier
10,000 structures, many of which are located on tribal trust
property.
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For operational and administrative purposes, the Flathead
Project is ,divided into three main irrigation divisions: the
Jocko Division (in this area here) is lying in and receives
water from the Jocko River drainage. When looking at the map,
it is important to remember that the main irrigation works and
facj-litie^ are includ^ed within these blue, dashed lines. This
is^the Camas Division, Pablo Division, Post Mission and the
Jocko Division. But all of the irrigation facilities,
distribution lines, or canals are included in within these blue,
dashed lines. So someone living in this area here would not
receive service from the Flathead Irrigation Project.

MS. RUNDLE: Teresa, could I ask you a question to clarify?
I think I misunderstood. First you I thought that you
indicated that it was divided into three divisions

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: Yes

MS. RUNDLE: and then, I think you gave five names, am I
confused?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD; Yes, excuse me. Each division is then
divided into miscellaneous sub-divisions. As I go through this,
I will go clarify that.

MS. RUNDLE: Okay, thank you.

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: Okay, but for Here is the Jocko
Division, this lies in the Jocko River drainage and receives
water from the South Fork-of the Jocko and there's a partial
influence from the Middle Fork of the Jocko (which is located
right here). I want to make one thing perfectly clear. I
didn't attempt to identify all of the main water supply
sources. There are many water sources contributing to the
Flathead Irrigation Project that are not identified. This is
merely for illustration. As you can see, though, the main
supply sources located up and down the face of the Mission are
located on tribal trust property. So you have the Jocko
Division, whose main water supply sources are the South Fork of
the Jocko, and there is a partial influence from the Middle Fork

,^'of ',the ,Jocko River.

-The Mission District receives partial influence from the' Middle
Fork of the Jocko River, the North Fork of the Jocko and ,Mission
Creek. Across the face of the Missions you have the Pablo "
Feeder Canal. It originates at McDonald Reservoir, and travels
north. I believe it is 29 miles long. It intersects over a
hundred streams down the face of the Mission, all of which
originate on tribal land and then the water is dispersed
outward.
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As I stated before, there are 12 major storage reservoirs that
are located on tribal trust property, such as the Mission
Reservoir, McDonald Reservoir, Nine-Pipes, Kicking Horse, and
Pablo. And those are all are located on tribal property.

But you have three main divisions and then you have a number of
subdivisions. It is ny understanding that the lateral systems

"for the subdivisions can serve only those areas, but the water
supply for the main area of the Flathead Irrigation Project is
interconnected through storage and feeder canals.

You do have the Camas Division which serves over here and the
main water source is the Little Bitterroot River. Over half of
the drainage area of the Little Bitterroot River is tribal trust
property, but the river itself originates ,about 20 or 30 miles
off the reservation. The map is a little confusing because you
have districts versus divisions, but the divisions are separated
for operational purposes by the Flathead Irrigation Project.
The districts are legal boundaries established by court order
under state law in 1926 for the organized water users. You may
have a district boundary that is the same area as a division, or
you may have a district boundary that includes one or more
subdivisions. So, it's a little confusing. Are there any
questions?

MR. ROTH: Yes, where does the Joint Board come in as far as
it's jurisdiction, where does it's authority eminnate from?

MS, WALL-MCDONALD: Well, as stated earlier over 90 no,
I didn't get that far-T-over 90% of the land served by the
Flathead Irrigation Project are held in fee status by non-Indian
owners. The non-Indian land owners are represented by state
chartered irrigation districts. The districts are known as the
Flathead, Mission, and Jocko Districts. Members of the
irrigation districts consolidated into a joint board of control
in order to coordinate the.administration of the districts. The
three irrigation districts .signed repayment contracts with the
U. S. Government in 1928 through 1934, and under the terms of
that contract the districts are obligated to collect the 0 and M
assessments from the non-Indian water users. They collect the
money and then they later transfer that to the Flathead
Project. Then the project bills them for the service. The 0
and M rate, on the average, is probably $10.00 per acre,

MR, ROTH: Does the system contemplate that ultimately when
the system' is paid for that title to the project will be
transferred.

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: I will defer that question to the tribal
legal counsel that's present.
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MR. GOETZ; No.

MR. ALDRICH: The normal process on both reclamation
projects would be that if Congress so directed that it would be
turned over. But lacking an act of Congress, it will not be
turned over.

MR. GOETZ: There is some discussion, by the way in-fact,
there "is a petition out to transfer control to the Bureau of
Reclamation for various reasons. I.don't know if you have seen
the Mission Valley News last week, but we've got some copies
here we have xeroxed for you. And, you're going to get, Teresa,
to the study that's

MS. WALL-MCDONALD; No, but I could address that.

MR. GOETZ; Why don't you address the study that is
currently under way

MS. WALL-MCDONALD; In October of 1984, Senator Melcher met
with the Department of the Interior Secretary, William Clark and
he expressed a great deal of concern about the operation of the
Flathead Irrigation Project. At that time, the Senator was
advocating the position of turning over the Irrigation Project
to the irrigation districts. Senator Clark called for a
comprehensive review of the irrigation project before making any
decisions. A team was put together with members from the BIA
and the Bureau of Reclamation to come out and do a thorough
review of the (inaudible) of the Flathead Irrigation Project to
document long-standing problems. That final study, the final
draft, will be delivered to the Secretary of Interior on
September 30. At that point in time, he will undoubtedly review
it, make any recommended changes and then release the study for
public distribution.

The project I'll go back to this the project, first
delivered water through constructed irrigation facilities in
1911. As of 1983, the Project delivered over 124,000 acre feet
of quota water to approximately 127,000 acres of assessable
lands.

Now, it's my understanding that at the beginning of the
irrigation season, the project delivers non-quota water, which
is termed extra or excess water,' and they don't keep track of
that water. The figure of, 124,000 acre feet delivered in '83 is
.taken from the quota water once the project reaches the point
where they actually keep tract of the water that they're
diverting;

About 91.5% of the actual irrigated acreage is land held in fee,
largely by non-Indian owners. The remaining 9.5% is trust land,
either Tribal or allotted.
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The gross crop value in 1983 for lands irrigated by FIP was $20
million with a per acre value of $161,00 per acre. The
sprinkler crop value for 1983, included in the gross crop value,
was $15^million.

The area has a growing season of about 120 days. The main crops
are hay, pasture, grains, with minor crops of potatoes, lentils,
sunflowers, soybeans, and fruit. Sprinkler irrigation is
practiced on about 48% of the lands served.

As discusssed earlier, the non-Indian land owners who are
represented by state chartered irrigation districts and three
districts were organized under Montana State Law in 1926 those
districts being the Flathead, Mission and Jocko. These three
districts signed repayment contracts with the U. S. Government
in 1928 through 1934. Under the terms of the contract the
districts are obligated to repay the federal government its net
investment in irrigation facilities, if the net revenues
generated from the sale of electrical energy within the
Reservation boundaries are insufficient to meet the debt
installments to the U S. Government. To date, all federal
investment that has been repaid, roughly $6 million, has come
from net revenues generated from the sale of power.

The administration of the irrigation district functions is
coordinated through the Joint Board of Control, composed of
irrigation district board members plus one member at large.
Tribal members whose land is in trust status are excluded from
belonging to an irrigation district. The Tribal member whose
land-is in trust cannot run for election to the irrigation
district board nor can they vote for the district board members.

Currently, the Joint Board is responsible for the collection of
irrigation operation and maintenance charges from the water
users it represents. In addition, if the net revenues generated
from the sale of electric energy are not sufficient to reimburse
the federal government, the Joint Board is responsible for the
collection of the due payment from its members through a special
assessment. To date, this has never happened.

I alluded earlier to the power system operated by the Flathead
project. They probably serve over 18,000 customers within the
reservation boundaries. I didn't prepare any other information"
as to the power system because we were mainly concerned with
irrigation. But I would be happy to answer any questions if you
have- any.

MR. ROTH: Where is the power generated?
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MS. WALL-MCDONALD: The majority of the power is purchased
from the Montana Power Company and BPA. They do have one small
hydrogenerating facility within the reservation boundaries
called the ...(inaudible)... but the majority of the power is
purchased and then retailed to the residents of the reservation.

MR. ROTH: Why aren't tribal members qualified to be members
of the district. Is that a tribal rule or is it a district
rule?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: No. That is included in the act of May
10, 1926. That was the act that established irrigation
districts, or recommended that they organize. In 1925 Congress
had invested over $5 million into the irrigation system. Little
or nothing had been paid on that debt of construction. Before
Congress would continue to appropriate money for further
development of the irrigation system, they recommended that the
water users organize into irrigation districts chartered under
state law, so that there would be some sort of legal entity that
they could hold responsible for repayment of the federal debt.

MR. MCOMBER: Who do the ditch riders work for? The people
that actually open the headgates who is their boss?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: The Bureau of Indian Affairs Flathead
Project. They are all federal employees.

MR. PABLO: Auggie, sitting there, is the boss.

MR. MILLER: That's correct. (laughter)

MR. PABLO: So, maybe if you have any questions We just
asked Theresa to go through some history, and Auggie is sitting
there, he might not agree.

MR. MILLER: No, she's doing a good job.

SENATOR GALT: To go back to Urban's question. Did you say
the Indians in these tribal members in these irrigation
districts that have allotted land what if they own their land?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: If their land is in fee status then
they do participate within the irrigation districts.

SENATOR GALT: And they can vote, they can be an officer,
and have all the other if they have fee land.

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: Yes. If they choose to exercise that.

SENATOR GALT: Do any of them do that?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: I am not sure.
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SENATOR GALT; No?

MS WALL-MCDONALD: In the 1950's, a tribal member did serve
on an irrigation board. It was kind of a good will gesture made
by the i-rrigtion districts, but that was just for one year.
That is the only time it has happened.

MR. PABLO; Ron, did you have something?

MR. THERRIAULT; No, just to mention that, yes I'm I have
fee-land and I am under the project, although there is nothing
delivered to me. I pay 0 and M charges arid construction
... (inaudible)... 1 think' that's the term they use. I did
inquire once about running for office. It's one election, since
I don't like to lose them, that I didn't bother to pursue.

MR. GALT; Well, did you say that you paid the 0 and M and
still don't get any water delivered to you?

MR. THERRIAULT; Right.

MR. GALT: Why would you pay your 0 and M?

MR. THERRIAULT; Because that's the w'ay^ the policy is set
up, and I have 0 and M charges were charged against the mass
land the mass acreage originally. I have apportion of that
so, they sort of carry it over since I have a portion of it.
The people that own the rest of the land do use irrigation, but
I am still attached to it, so I still pay. But after I found
out what it took to get away from it, I figured I would be ahead
of the game to go ahead and pay it. ...daughter) ...

MR. ROTH: Theresa, can you make your printed remarks a part
of the record, so that we can obtain copies of it?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD; Yes. Mr. Therriault's problem probably
comesjfrom the fact that his land is classified as assessible
class I„ or, class II lands. That doesn't necessarily ,mean that
he actually irrigates or that he actually puts the water to use,
or that he actually receives it, but because it is classified as
accessible, he is charged for a.fee.

MR. THERRIAULT; I might add, the closest canal is seven
tenths of a mile away from it, and we thoroughly discussed; why
don't you run a feeder canal into me,just so that I could have
it and feel comfortable, and that was sort of ruled out.

MS." RUNDLE; If I could go back, Theresa, the three state
districts—-the three districts organized under state law
pursuant to that '26 act are the Jocko, the Mission, and the
Flathead.
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MS. WALL-MCDONALD: Right.

MS. RUNDLE: But the BIA divisions for operating
purposes what are the names of those?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: There is the Camas Division—this map is
wrong, it should have division instead of district Camas
Division, Mission Division, Jocko Division, Post Division, and
the Pablo,Division.

MS. RUNDLE: Thank you. So there are five divisions, in
three districts?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: And, the—it is my understanding that
the Flathead District includes the area everything north of
Post Creek.

MS. RUNDLE: Would that roughly correspond to Post and Pablo
Divisions?

MS. WALL-MCDONAD: Yes.

MS. RUNDLE: And where does Camas belong?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: The Camas Division belongs within the
Flathead District.

MR. MCOMBER: Teresa, do you know if additional lands are
capable of irrigation if there are additional lands capable of
irrigation under the gravity system?

MS WALL-MCDONALD: I couldn't answer that but Tom
Bateridge might be able to address that.

MR. BATERIDGE: There probably are. There probably are some
tribal lands that are irrigable that could be irrigated by the
existing system.

MR. ROTH: Are there any plans to augment the water supply?

MR. MCOMBER: Is there enough water available to get the ]ob
done?

MR. BATERIDGE: I am not sure. I can't answer that
question.

MS. RUNDLE: Mr. Chairman, if there aren't further questions
about the irrigation district. I would be very interested in
understanding more about the power project part of it, because I
don't quite understand the relationship between the use of
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revenues from the power project to pay the 0 and M charges.
Exactly why you're buying power from BPA and Montana Power. You
sound like the delivery man. I mean, the FIP is the delivery
man for the

/ rt

MS. WALL-MCDONALD; I would Say that. The main connection
between the irrigation and the power divisions is the transfer
of what they call net revenues. When FIP retails electrical
energy within the reservation boundaries, the cost of that
energy is inflated a very small i am not supposed to call it a
profit, but that's really what it Is the price is inflated in
order to' generate a net revenue that goes back to the federal
government to pay them their net investment in the irrigation
and the power facilities.

MR. ALDRICH: It's repayment of construction costs as
opposed to O and M. I think you said 0 and M. It is
construction costs that they pay.

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: Right. Construction the power system
subsidizes the irrigation system by making all of these
installments on the existing construction debt. And I believe,
the cost of constructing the power system was a little over 5
million dollars.

MR. ROTH; Are there any plans to augment the supply of
water so that the system can be expanded?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD; Not that I am aware of.

MR. ROTH; Are there any potential sources of water from
which the project could be expanded?

MR. MUELLER; I would say that if we were to enlarge some of
our storage facilities, that many years, that the water would be
available. Some years like this year, for instance, there was
very little water that would have been available.

MR. ROTH; In Other words, in high water years,
you're some of the water is going into, I suppose

MR. MUELLER: In estimation,, in most years, there would
be additional water. In addition, one of our sources of water
is, we do have pumps on the Flathead River and this is one year
that we've pumped. And according to the only limitation that
I know of now is, in the agreement on Kerr Dam, we're limited to
50,000 acre feet pumped after July 1. And we have to pump
considerably beyond the irrigation season to pump that much,
because we only pump roughly 400 acre feet a day. So we would
have to pump solid for over four months, which would be through
the month of October, in order to reach that limit. And it
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doesn't even address anything in the calendar year before that,
so theoretically we could pump anytime that the river is high
enough.

The one 1 imitation^on that at the present time is the way our
pumps are constructed. When the power the Montana Power has
the lake drawn down in the spring, we can't run our pumps
because their intakes are not low enough to prevent
...(inaudible)...-—so we probably couldn't start pumping before
late. May most'years, but then it would-be at least the month of
June we can pump, in addition to that, 50,000 limitation. So I
think we could develop more land.

Also, whatever ground waters are available might be utilized
somewhat. Also, early in the year, even sometimes late in the
year, there is more return flows than even were required on our
...(inaudible)... this year. It may not be all that
significant in a dry year, but this year, most normal years, I
think there would be water available, for at least the
additional tribal lands.

MS. ARMSTRONG: Mr. Chairman. What was your name, please?

MR. MDELLER: Mueller, August Mueller.

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: Auggie, isn't it correct that you also
have two smaller pumps, one in Crow Creek and one on
...(inaudible)...

MR. MUELLER: Yes.

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: And SO those would be to supplement
the

MR, MUELLER: Well, except that these are waters that are
addressed elsewhere. It doesn't bring any additional water in.
It just makes it available at a different place.

MR. ROTH: Well, besides, you just addressed tribal lands,
but the augmentation could also serve non-tribal lands, couldn't
it?

MR. MUELLER: Well, you were asking about additional
lands the answer is yes,

"* 1 ^ "
I

MR. ROTH: Yeah. Because about 6 00 acres are owned in fee

by non-members, and most of it is located in the valley, part of
the valley, at the lower elevations, as I understand it. So
the augmentation could also

MR. MUELLER: Well, I think the original authorization was

i"tf]8i -eg?«
these lands are.
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I would like to address one other issue that Theresa brought
over on this power. That the power we get we get roughly a
third of our power for the power project from Kerr Dam, which is
a low cost block of power. It's cheap enough so that that more
than pays the difference in price between that block of power
and the what we are paying Bonneville Power will more than pay
the costs of the repayment contract. The repayment contract is
pretty well laid out in Public Law 80-554, so Congress had
intended that it be handled in this manner.

MR. PABLO: Any more questions?

MS. RUNDLE: Mr. Chairman. Teresa, do the irrigation
districts or the Joint Board have either authority or
responsibility for the operation of the FIP project either the
power or the irrigation part?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: I would

MR. MUELLER: It's I'll answer that. It is the
responsibility of the government to operate it. We have a
contract to deliver water to the districts. The districts have
contract to collect our 0 and M and pay us for that service.

MR. ROTH: And that is the subject of the federal act?

MR. MUELLER: Yes.

MR. ROTH; Is the contract then incorporated into the
federal act?

MR. MUELLER: It works the Other way, the federal act is
incorporated into the latest contract. Teresa mentioned
contracts back in the 30's. The one I am most familiar with is
the one that was in the block 49 to 51. I think it was signed
in 51. Is that right. Chuck?

MR. STIPE: That's close.

MS. WALL-MCDONALD; According to provisions of Public Law
80-554 which was enacted in 1948 that act specified six
obligations, six repajijment obligations. Those six obligations
are then worked into t:he repayment contract. I believe the
contract is of a financial nature and not necessarily a water
delivery contract, but that is just ny interpretation of it.

MR. ALDRICH: Mr. Chairman. If I could maybe make some
comments and also a little bit of explanation. I think it's
also the Tribe has pointed out that the water users have
petitioned to remove BIA. I think that in all fairness, we
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should note that the Tribes have petitioned BIA to transfer
operation and maintenance of the project from BIA to the Tribes,
under what' is called a 638 contract arrangement.

MR. DECKER: When was that? We had discussions

MR. PABLO: There was never a petition.

MR. ALDRICH; There has been a request made by the Tribe,
perhaps by previous councils

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: Mr. Chairman. If I could address
that

MR. ALDRICH: Go ahead.

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: I I believe that in the early 70's
there were some preliminary discussions with officials of the
BIA about the possibility of contracting the projects under
93-638. But the Tribes did not file a formal petitition. We
simply asked for technical assistance and information about
that, but the tribes have never formally petitioned to take
over.

MR. ALDRICH: I stand corrected on that. I apologize. The
other comments will, hopefully, not be as inflammatory. The
Joint Board, in response to Urban's request, is a creatue purely
of state law. The state law provides for the formation of joint
boards of irrigation districts where they have a common source
of supply. The Milk River Projects are considering one now;
there is one in eastern Montana on the lower Yellowstone;
Buffalo Rapids, I believe, also has one. So it is purely a
creature of state law.

The as I would gather the sole function of the irrigation
districts the formation the authorization in the federal
statute was to provide a,vehicle whereby the lands could be
assessed and taxed for purposes of repayment if it became
necessary, but primarily for funding of operation and
maintenance purposes. And, then finally, the power subsidy that
was discussed here sounds like a minature Pick-Sloan project.
It's just the same type of an operation, on a much smaller
scale, as currently exists in the Missouri Basin. I believe, it
also exists in'the Columbia Basin. It is not at all unusual
wheire authorized by Congress.

MR. MCOMBER: Have I got this down right? You said
something like 140,000 acres?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD; Mr. Mueller stated that he believed that
the proposed area that they put under irrigation in the early^
1900^3 was 140,000 acres. Currently, the project delivers WBter
to about 127,000 acres.
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MR. MCOMBER: And you have 2,600 water users?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: Yes.

MR. MCOMBER; You've got some pretty small operations here,
then or do they go to people in town. How about city users,
that irrigate their lawn, are they included in that?

' MS. WALL-MCDONALD: I couldn't answer

MR. MUELLER: There are some this does happen that some
lands get and not only just in town, you'll also have people
out in the country that have ten acres also. And many of the
allotments were not that big to begin with.

MR. ALDRICH: Mr. Chairman. I think that's the key right
there. There were some very stringent acreage limitations on
allotment size, and on farm unit size; again, similar to the
reclamation 160 acre limitation, but even smaller, insofar as
the irrigated portion of the allotments is concerned on the
Flathead Reservation.

MS. WALL-MCDONALD; Mr. Chairman. During the allotment
process, the tribal members could choose to have 80 acres of
irrigated land or 160 acres of timber land.

MR. MCOMBER; That makes for quite an administrative
problem, doesn't it?

MS. WALL-MCDONALD; If you go back to the legislative
history, behind the 1904 act which provided for allotment to
tribal members, you will see that Congressional intent at that
time was that the majority of the area served by the Irrigation
System would be allotted and would belong to tribal members.
There is reference to 3/4 of the area served by the irrigation
system would be serving only tribal members.

MR. MCOMBER; What I was getting at is that, hopefully,
we'll eventually get to the place where we start looking at who
has what. And that's quite a few people to look at, especially
if

MR.^ DECKER; That goes to the problem on the land title
question earlier today. That's exactly the problem. The
majority of the allotments in the Mission Valley were 80 acre
allotments because they were within those irrigation district
areas. So you start out with fairly small parcels of land to
begin with. The ...(inaudible)... I believe had 40 acre mineral
limitations, but as originally ...(inaudible)... same as a
Bureau of Rec proTect. So, you are dealing with a lot of
parcels of land where you are looking a land title records. And
then, homestead
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lands of course are the same there are similar land title
questions with those lands too. So with all the lands in the
areas, we're looking at land title questions. That's a sizeable
research project.

MR. ROTH: I think we're all agreed that if everyone within
the project put the water to use with reasonable diligence, we
might-—. "

, ,MR. DECKER; That's like get some water to tribal lands
thatxpay currently pay 0 and M's but don't get water to th'em.

MR. MCOMBER: Mr. Chairman. Did I understand someone to say
that nearly half of the land is irrigated by sprinkler, 40 some
percent.

MR. PABLO: Yes.

MR. MCOMBER: There must be a lot of very small sprinkler
outfits; you're probably counting the sprinklers in the
backyard, aren't you?

MR. MUELLER: Well, not necessarily. There are some pretty
sizeable farms that are all irrigated by sprinklers, too. If
it's half the land; that doesn't necessarily mean that it is
half the users. I have no comment'on the number of users, I am
just throwing this out.

MR. PABLO: Any further questions or comments?

MR. GOETZ: Mr. Chairman. I should explain that Teresa Wall
used to work for the Tribes, and she was the .resident expert on
the Flathead Irrigtion Project. But she's defected to the
BIA....(laughter)...She needed special we asked her to address
the group because she is the most knowledgeable person. She
needed special permission and she needed to submit her comments
to Mr. Mueller; so in fairness to her. position, I think we, as
long as Mr. Mueller is here, I want it on the record that what
she said is accurate as far as,you know, or if there are any
corrections, we should have them made on the record at this
point or additions that have to be made.

MR. MUELLER: She did an excellent 30b.

MR. PABLO: Thank you, Teresa.

MS. WALL-MCDONALD: Mr. Chairman, I will spread this out on
the table, and at a break or at an appropriate time, you may
want to look at this very briefly. It is a 1982 map of the
Flathead Irrigation Project and this map is a little bit easier
tQ understand than the one I was using up here. But the red
lines here, illustrate the ditches " — "and canals, and the way the
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system works or was originally designed. In 1918, they were
projecting 99,000 acres of irrigable land, but you may want to
refer to this.

MR. PABLO: Thank you. Ready to move on to No. 4: the
discussion of possible sharing of data collection costs. Do we
have any 'Other topics between the Compact Commission.

MR. GOETZ; ...(inaudible)...

MR. PABLO: Yeh, I think the technical people should get
together and get a meeting set and then we've gone over
that

MR. BATERIDGE: Mr. Chairman. We have tentatively scheduled
a date and a meeting place Wednesday the 25th of December in
Missoula. And I think our friend, Mr. Delk, is going to find a
place for us to meet. Is that right. Bob?

MR. DELK: ...(inaudible)...

..(laughter)...

MR. MCOMBER: Which which month was that?

MR. BATERIDGE: This month, two weeks from today.

MR. MCOMBER: You said December, so

MR. BATERIDGE: September.

MR. PABLO: Is that okay with everybody?

MR. MCOMBER: I think SO.

MR. PABLO: No. 5 we kind of went over that this morning.
Is there any other comments on this? The tribal discussion of
off reservation water claims we kinda set it up this morning and
gave you copies of the claims. Was that covered well enough?

MR. MCOMBER: Unless counsel has some questions?

MS. RUNDLE: Mr. Chairman. The list that we were given was
of streams for which there have been temporary preliminary
decrees issued in which the tribes have filed objections.
Correct?

MR. DECKER: Yes.

MS. RUNDLE: Can we anticipate that there are many more, a
few more, lots more? Do you have a list?
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MR. GOETZ: A few more.

MS. RUNDLE; A few more. Are you

MR. GOETZ: The Bitterroot drainage is one obvious on
that beyond that

MR. DECKER; Mr. Chairman! As we become aware of decisions
that have been put out in,the Clark Fort divisions basins, I
guess is what .the Water Court refers to them as, there are two
basins that touch the Reservation. And our understanding from
the comments made by Judge Lessley is that there will probably
not be entered preliminary decrees in those two basins. So,
there will be objections if that does happen ...(inaudible)...
And then there are two additional basins that, as Jim mentioned,
cover the Bitterroot basin, which I believe is 76A, where when
one comes out on that basin, we will certainly, I believe at
this point in time, be issuing an objection if there is no
recognition of our reserved aboriginal right in that basin. It
depends. It is kind of on a case by case basis. Judge Lessley
has been modifying his temporary preliminary decrees slightly
each time, so it just depends on how that"decree comes out. If
we issue an objection in an additional basin more than the Clark
Fork drainage, that has not been issued yet. So, I think we
indicated earlier that, in most of the basins in the Clark Fork
division, that we would anticipate, putting in these kind of
objections.

MR. GOETZ: And then the Mussel shell (laughter)....

MR. DECKER: ...(inaudible)...

MR. ROTH: While we have seen some of your the legal
arguments that you have advanced, in regard to on stream, or
on-reservation instream rights other than citing the language
from your Hellgate Treaty, that gives you the right to fish in
common with citizens with regard to public or unclaimed
land-rr-Do you have any brief or legal memorandum addressed to
the issue of why you have some right to an instream flow off the
reservation that is superior to those citizens with whom you

,, f ish in common.

MR. GOETZ: No, we have ...(inaudible)...

• , ' MR. ROTH: I think to serious consider that, we do need you
to advance something in the way of a legal position paper.

MR. GOETZ: You want a response to that? Do you want us to
brief the issue for you, is that it?
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MR. ROTH: I want you—you're the one asserting it, right at
the moment, I guess I'm not too impressed with that claim, but,
you know, our minds are open.

MR. DECKER; I would recommend that you read the recent
Kittitas case, which is an off-reservation water claim, the
Yakima Reservation with a similar treaty. I suppose that would
be the first thing I would direct you to it is a similar
treaty provision, it is an off-reservation water claim involving
an irrigation district that impacted that reservation.

MR. ROTH: But that isn't ...(inaudible)...

MR. DECKER: I think that's pretty persuasive.

MR. ROTH; But, isn't the impact on the reservation?

MR. DECKER: No. The impact was off the reservation. It
was drying salmon eggs off the reservation. The redds that were
in question were approximately 50 miles north of the Yakima
Indian Reservation.

MR. ROTH; Okay. Yeh, I can see immediate distinctions,
but, okay.

MR. GOETZ; Mr. Chairman. My feeling is. Urban, that the
treaty is very clear on that. I mean, I don't want to get into
a position of where we assert a right, at your demand we submit
a brief so that we can persuade you of the merits of our legal
position. ...daughter)... That could go both ways in this
negotiations. I think that the case law and the treaty are
pretty clear.

MR. ROTH: Well, then, is that the extent the treaty
langauge and the Kittitas case, is that the extent of it?

MR. DECKER: There is an additional line of cases. There are
probably three precedential cases in the Ninth Circuit that in
those particular cases are discussing off-reservation water and
instream rights.

fc t, ,

MR. MCOMBER: Is that what you wanted to know.

MR. ROTH: Well, that's all they're going to give me for the
moment, so I guess I'll have to be satisfied with it, I'd
prefer

MR. GOETZ: Well, usually we write our briefs for the
judges.
. i.(laughter)...
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MR. PABLO: Okay, if there aren't any more comments on that,
we're on No. 6 now the discussion of recent litigation between
the Montana-Department of Fish, Wildlife and Parks and the
Montana Water Court.

MR. GOETZ: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We have moved for
"amicus status,'and been granted that status by the Montana
Supreme-Court in support of the Fish, Wildlife and Parks
petition and I you probably are aware of that, but I thought
we should bring it up and I don't—does the Compact Commission
have a position on that suit? , ' .t '

MR. MCOMBER: Individually or collectively?...(laughter)...
We are trying to keep our 'nose out of it.

MR. GOETZ; I don't know that there is much to discuss here,
Mr. Chairman. You are probably aware that we have moved for
that status.

SENATOR GALT: And it's been granted to you, Jim?

MR. GOETZ: Yes.

MR. PABLO: Montana Power has also got amicus status.

MR. ALDRICH: Is the power company coming in as an amicus or
as an intervenor?

MR. GOETZ: An amicus, I believe.

MR. DECKER: That's my understanding.

MR. PABLO: Well, that run through the agenda we have.
Gordon, do you have another one or two you might want to bring
up here in a short time?

MR. MCOMBER: Well, we want to talk about we want to recap
what we have done before we go home. We want to talk about the
next meeting. Do any of the other members have anything else.

A *

MR. ROTH: Yes, there is still another item that kind of
dovetails in a sense to the participation and that's our Rule
408 agreement. We-still haven't got a signed agreement with
regard to the fact that the information, statements, positions,
given to the other party or given by a party in these
negotiations are inadmissible in any subsequent litigation, nor
will it be used as an admission against any party. We've gone
into,these negotiations with that caveat, and I want to restate
it at this time that that is still our position, but I believe
that^-we ought to memorialize our positions in a written document
that's agreeable to both parties with regard to that aspect of
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our negotiations. And we do have, and I think we have given
you, a preliminary form of agreement at the last meeting we were
going to get your comments on it, but we haven* t gotten those.

MR. GOETZ: We didn't
- \> ,

MR. DECKER: We haven't seen a 408 agreement.

MR. ROTH; YOU have not.

MR. DECKER: No.

'MR. ROTH: I think Marcia is prepared to give you another
one....(laughter)....

MS. RUNDLE; I'm sorry. I thought 1 was real certain that
at the last meeting we showed you a copy of an agreement that
had been proposed very early on in negotiations maybe in 1980
or '81?

MR. GOETZ: I don't recall that.

MS. RUNDLE: Hmm

MR. BROWN: I also thought it was one that had been signed
with either the Northern Cheyenne or the

MR. ROTH: We have a recent one. The most recent one, it
seems to me we submitted was the Crow. We submitted one to the
Crow. That might be the one.

MR. BROWN: It certainly wasn't

MS. RUNDLE: No—No—This one is specific to the
Salish-Kootenai Tribes. I don't have the signature page, but
this was in my files. I thought it was a copy of that that I
shared with you at the last meeting. That's ray only copy that I
have with me.

MR. ROTH: Well, while you're reading that, Jim. With
regard to the public and unclaimed lands upon which you claim an
aboriginal off-reservation instream flow right, how did they
coincide with or dovetail with those instream flow rights that
the Forest Service is claiming?

MR. GOETZ: Well, if there is water in a stream whether it
be with a federal agency or the Montana Fish and Game Department
or the tribes, it is the same water, the fish the same fish
live in it. And the issue, it seems to me, is how much water is
necessary to preserve the fisheries. And if there is a Fish and
Game instream flow, a Murphy', s, right, for instaijce, that's
comRatibf^ with the tribal tights, .the Murphy right doesn^t
...^inaudible due to background noise)... more than the tribal
right.
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MR. ROTH: The alleged tribal right, at this point, alright?

MR. GOETZ; Well, I think we can 1 don't think we have to
make those qualifications in the negotiations. If you want
tor--But, the point is that you can have, it seems to me, three
overlapping claims on the same water with different priority
dates/ and they are all compatible.

MR. ROTH: But territorially, they are located in the
Department of Interior aren't they?

MR. GOETZ: Well—

MR. ROTH: As far as we know? You are talking about public
domain lands, aren't you?

MR. GOETZ: No. The tribal rights are not limited to public
domain lands, nor are the Fish and Game instream flow rights.
To the extent that the Fish and Game Department has rights. I
gather the Forest Service would be.

MR. ROTH: Alright.

MR. GOETZ: Maybe you do need a brief on this.

MR. ROTH: I sure do. ...(laughter)... Actually,, I would
like more clarification of the territory within,which'you are
claiming these off-reservation instream fishing rights or stream
flow rights, vis-a-vis, whether they are owned by the public
domain or whether they are Murphy Rights, or whether they don't
fall within neither one of those categories.

MR. GOETZ: When an 1855 treaty says that the Indian people
have the right to fish at usual and accustomed places, and the
U. S. Forest Service isn't even created until the 1890's, and
then you get those boundaries the tribal right can't be
confined to public domain as it existed fifty years later.

MR.' ROTH: You left out a very, very significant phrase "in
common with the citizens". That doesn't raise your fishing
right to the level of creating an instream flow right, in my
opinion.

MR-. DECKER: That's not what the Ninth Circuit has decided.

MR; ROTH: What's that?

MR. DECKER:

opinion.
I said, in contrary to the Ninth Circuit's
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MR. ROTH: Well, I the Ninth Circuit opinion that you
cited has significantly different from any of the facts that you
have been citing, in regard to the Flathead Reservation.

MR, GOETZ: Well, we're not leaving out the term, "in common
with the citizens of the state". That's in the treaty and
nobody has left those words out, as far as I know, in these
discussions. We are not making a claim that the off-reservation
tribal fishing interests are exclusive to the Tribes. So I want
to make that clear that we are not leaving that language out.

MRS. ROTH: You are not making that exclusive to the Tribe,
did you just say?

MR. GOETZ; That's right. In the off—the tribal—the
treaty language is clear that off-reservations, as Urban points
out, the language is "in common with the citizens of the state"
or the territory.

MR. BROWN: Mr. Chairman, may I ask. This morning. Urban
stated that while the Commission hasn't taken a position on
this, and certainly none of us have, we're willing to explore
this. In preparation for the meeting that we'll have on the
25th, I plan to come prepared to exchange with Tom, and Peg, and
Bob whoever is there, the information as much information as
I can gather from the state's end as to the streams that have
been studied for these instream flow rights. Murphy's rights,
reservation requests in the west and so-on. But it would be
very useful to us, I think, if we could at some early date get
some kind of an idea which streams were the usual places where
tribal members fished and what the treaty alludes to. Is it all
streams, or is it a certain number of streams? I have no
idea—and I'm not sure anyone else has—which streams we are
talking about. I think we should know that, and fairly soon.

MR. GOETZ: We gave you a list of the streams this morning.

' MR. BROWN: Would that be a comprehensive list, though of
the streams that we would examine? Those for which there have
already been temporary preliminary decrees issued.

MR. GOETZ: It would be a comprehensive list of those that
have temporary preliminary decrees on them, yes.

MR. ROTH: That's a list of basins, besides. So are you
contending that within each and every basin you are you have
an instream flow right to each and every stream within the
basin?

MR. GOETZ: Well, I think it's a list of streams, really.
It's not a list of basins.
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MR. ROTH: Don't they have tributaries to those
rivers?—within the basins?

' MR.. GOETZ: Wellr we're talking about, for example, Flint
Creek, the Swan River, the,South Fork of the Flathead,

MR.-: BROWN: So, for example. I-believe. Gold Creek, which
is brie^of the tributaries of the Clark F^ork-—I believe that has
been entered in a temporary preliminary decree that we can
assume that, since it is not on,this list there will probably not
be any-claim by the tribe for aboriginal rights on the Gold
Creek.

MR. GOETZ: ...(inaudible)....question of ...(inaudible)...

MR. DECKER: I don't think we even got a notice on Gold
Creek;

MR. BROWN: Well, I am leaving the state, I'm trying

MR. DECKER; Well, I don't think there's ...(inaudible)...
basin listed.

MR. BROWN; Okay.

MS. RUNDLE; I would like to pursue that a little further,
though, because I am still not clear

MR. BROWN; Yes.

MS. RUNDLE: For instance, you listed the Swan River. Does
that mean that you have eliminated Squeezer Creek, Goat Creek,
Bond Creek all those small tributaries to the Swan?

MR. DECKER: All we've listed are those basins where we've
...(inaudible)...

«r

, MR. BROWN: I see. I asked the question without thinking
this through. Gold Creek would be in 76M and so you're skying
all tributaries within that basin.

MRi^ ROTH; Mr. Chairman, I don't have anything else.

MR. PABLO: Well. Shall we break, and both sides caucus and
then go over what we did today, and then maybe try to set some
dates for the next meeting.

MR. MCOMBER: We would like you to think about the issues
that could be discussed at the next meeting, too, in caucus, Mr.
Chairman.
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MR. PABLO: Okay. A fifteen minute break.

The two parties went into caucus at 2:55 p.m.

The session reconvened at 3:30 p.m.

; MR. PABLO: Do we have a date change on that meeting for the
technical staff, Tom?

MR. BATERIDGE: Yes, Thursday, the 26th of September at 1:00
o'clock in Missoula.

MR. PABLO: Any particular place, or is he bringing a van
from the airport.

MR. DELK: Well, I ]ust scheduled a federal room for the
25th and now it has been changed to the 26th. So—

...(laughter)...

MR. DELK: I think we have a conference room in the federal
building.

MR. GOETZ: At whose request was it was rescheduled.

MR. PABLO: Tom.

MR. BATERIDGE: Mr. Chairman, could we clarify who is going
to be at that meeting.

MR. GOETZ: Not me.

MR. PABLO: Well it will ]ust be the technical staff
involved.

MR. BATERIDGE: ...(inaudible)... from the Compact
Commission and the tribes all staff.

MR. MCOMBER: Well, if some of the Commission members wish
to go, I wouldn't like them to be excluded. I certainly don't
intend to go.

MR. BROWN: You know I've invited Ave Linford. And I hope
that he will be able to attend, because these kinds of
discussions that went on early in the negotiations with "the Fort
Peck Tribes were benefited by his—by the knowledge he has
of---having been the State Soils Conservationist, so I would
appreciate if he could attend these kinds of meetings.

MR. GOETZ: Mr. Chairman, I think what Tom is getting at,
there be no legal counsel that be there from either sides.
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MS. RUNDLE: I have no intention of attending. I would
mention, though, that Dan Kemmis is a Commission member, and
lives in Missoula, and sometimes goes to meetings when they are
held in Missoula just because it is convenient for him. He
doesn't even know about it yet, so I have no idea if he would
want to go or not, but

• MR. PABLO: Is he a lawyer?

'MR. MCOMBER: Yes.

Mr". BROWN; But he

, MR. MCOMBER; Well, what Mr. Chairman, what is your wishes
on it would you prefer that just technical people be there.

MR. GOETZ: Well, I don't no, we don't have a problem
with Mr. Linford being there for the Commission. But if there
is a legal question that arises, though, either both counsel
from both sides should be there or no counsel. And that is the
reason for the question. And we don't have a problem with Dan
Kemmis being there because he is not serving as staff counsel.
If he starts making legal opinions or arguments, then our staff
will have to get us on the horn and get their miranda
warnings...(laughter)...

MR. MCOMBER; It was never intended that legal issues be
discussed at that meeting.

MR. PABLO; That's right.

MR. MCOMBER: Okay then?

MR. DECKER: Sounds fine.

MR. MCOMBER; Okay, Mr. Chairman.,

MR. PABLO: Okay, now do we want to agree to a possible
next meeting date and agenda items first, or do you kind of want
to recap what we felt we went through today.

MR. MCOMBER: We'd like to recap what we did today, Mr.
Chairman.

MR.'~ PABLO: Okay, Gordon.

MR. MCOMBER; Okay, this is our recollection of the
decisions, that have been made and the actions agreed upon for
today. The first one is that we both research the open meeting
law and come to the next meeting prepared to discuss procedure
and methods to deal with this question,.including bow_public- ,.
information would be handled and participation of—I snouldn t
say participation, but—
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MR. PABLO: ...(inaudible).,.

MR. MCOMBER: We have to communicate with people other than
tribal members. As I indicated to you this morning, it's just a
practical, political thing. We have to keep other people we
feel they; hwe an interest in our conclusions involved. Okay
for number one?

X
I >

Number two was that we have agreed that our technical people
would meet now September the 26th and return to us with

.recommendations on what information and data is needed, what
"informatiipn and data is available, what information and data
should be developed and, if possible, what the cost of that
development would be a rough estimate of the cost. It is
understood that this will be this information will be a

recommendation only, and it doesn't bear with it the authority
to make decisions. Okay? Then you're going to review
408 this 408 thing and discuss that at the next meeting. If
you had any other recollections of other issues that we
discussed or made a commitment on?

MR, PABLO: Dan or Jim?

MR, GOETZ: Well, those are the outstanding issues, but for
summarizing what we did today the other agenda items, of
course that are in the letter

MR, MCOMBER: Yes,

MR. GOETZ; speak for themselves.

MR, MCOMBER: Well, what we were we were thinking in terms
of what needs to be done, what committments we made today to do
something.

MR. PABLO: And as far as like the way you feel about our
alleged claims to instream flow until certain court cases are
settled, I think the State alleges to have jurisdiction, so we
are here to negotiate that.

MR. ROTH: We have committed to send you a bound copy of the
Fort Peck Compact, so that is another action that we have to
take.

MR. MCOMBER: Did I leave anything else out? Then if you
want to discuss the next meeting, Mr. Chairman, we're amenable
to that.

MR. PABLO: I had mid November?
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MR. ROTH; We were thinking of mid-November, but we wouldn't
like to commit to a date today to see various members time
schedules. But within the next week or ten days, we should be
able to commit to- a specific date.

1 *

MR. PABLO: Well, we have to come back to the; Council and
get everybody lined out here, but we will shoot for
mid-November.

MR. ROTH: Yes.

; ^ '

MR. MCOMBER: Okay.

MR. PABLO: Then on the agenda items. I have

MR. ROTH: Could we Mr. Chairman, could we discuss the
place of the meeting? It has been pointed out to me that most
of the meetings have taken place here at the tribal
headquarters. And we would suggest that the next meeting take
place that we're going to chair take place in Helena. We
can get an appropriate meeting place available. This would also
make it easier for the representative from the AG's office to be
present, a member of the DNRC and the Governor's Office also to
be present.

MR. MCOMBER: We'd talked previously about a tour of the
Reservation, but it's getting kind of late in the year for
that. So we'll have to put that off until a later date.

MR. THERRIAULT: ...(inaudible)... a field trip in

MR. MCOMBER: Yeah. Is Helena all right?

MR. THERRIAULT: I prefer Spokane, but I will settle for
Helena....(laughter)...

MR. PABLO: We'11 get the dates and everything, and get the
place later in Helena, some place you can pick the spot.

MR. MCOMBER. Alright.

MR. PABLO: Okay, Jim? Okay, let's start with the agenda
items. We'll start with the----sign the 408 agreement. Number
two, I have open meeting sta^tus; three, cost sharing of
research data; four, results of technical staff meeting; five,
news releases; and six, update on Commission talks with the
Flathead and Loio National forest and the Department of the
Interior reservations on the Reservation, like the wildlife
refuge and on watersheds that come over.
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MR. MCOMBER: We are very interested in getting down to the
meat of things, and I certainly have no problems with these
things mentioned. I question if anyone else does. We would
like to get into some meaningful discussions on a few other
basic issues. We would like to discuss off-reservation instream
flow rights and on-reservation instream flow rights. We would
like to discuss preservation of rights or protection of
rights of non-Indians on the reservation.

MR. DECKER: Mr. Chairman. Going back and, hopefully, not
rehashing, but as we were discussing earlier today that with
our initial meetings with the Compact Commission before we
suspended talks back in 1979, when Henry Loble was Chairman for
the Commission It is our recollection and, in conference with
other tribal legal staff who were present at those earlier
meetings, that initially Chairman Loble took the position, and
the Tribes took the position, that the negotiations were not
subject to the open meetings law. So, I'd like to request the
Tribes* position that the Compact Commission staff go back and
go through it's minutes. We're going to go back and look at
those minutes, likewise. And, that is iry understanding of
several discussions on the same thing that we discussed today.
And we do have some concerns about that, and I think that those
concerns need to be addressed and that we need to reach a common
resolution of those concerns. I, like Chairman McOmber, would
like to get into substantive issues. But before we ever get
into substantive discussions, we would certainly like also to
pursue this issue further. I think that we need to reach common
resolution on that first.

MR. MCOMBER: Good point.

MS. RDNDLE: Open meetings, then, should be the first thing
on that agenda. I Mr. Chairman, if I could clarify one thing
about the 408 agreement. I can't remember exactly how you
stated it, but I'm going to assume that between now and the time
that we have our next meeting, the counsel for both sides will
be in touch with each other as to proposed changes or

MR. DECKER: Sure.

MR. ROTH: Yeah—I was—actually, you can coordinate that
effort with Marcia and she'll call me if she has any questions.
And I would anticipate, basically, that by the time of the next
meeting the form of the agreement would have been agreed upon,
and perhaps even the signed agreement exchanged at that
particular time. And, hopefully, that a firm position with
regard to the open meeting law had been taken by the Commission
and at that meeting that discussion would not take a great deal
of time.
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There are other issues that we're interested in—information,' I
guess that we would like to have. We would like the Tribes*
position with regard to the Kerr Dam, and with regard to - ^ .
instream 1 guess would involve instream flow rights in regard
to power sites, power projects existing and potential. Seems
to me we've got to come to grips with some of these larger .
issues initially to see whether we can proceed through
negotiations to get a compact.'

MR. GOETZ: Gordon, could you repeat those issues that you
have on your list?

MR. MCOMBER: Well, on our list was first, it was the
report'from the technical team. You-had that on your list, Mr.
Chairman. And, then it was discussion of the off-reservation
instream flows and on-reservation instream flows. And then we
wanted to discuss the preservation of non-Indian rights water
rights that would be on the reservation or adjacent to the
reservation those those people that are using that water now
and have a right to it under state law.

MR. PABLO: Are all those nine items on the agenda? I
thought some of them I don't think will take very long.

MR. MCOMBER; No. That you have that 408 thing. That's
kind of just procedure, is it not? .

MR. PABLO; Yeah. You'11 get that letter, so it's coming
from both sides and it can be signed at that meeting.

MR. MCOMBER: Well, we must deal with this open meeting
problem. I we should come to arrive at some kind of
understanding on that. We certainly can't let that put a stop
to the negotiations.

MR. ALDRICH: Mr. Chairman. With respect to, for example,
the 408 agreement and all agreements that are reached in these
negotiations, I've got to keep pointing out we're not talking
just both parties here. We're talking about a tripartite
negotiation. On behalf of the United States, the Department of
Justice does have to participate in that 408 agreement, so I
would urge both counsels to coordinate with my office and with
the Department of Justice in drafting a 408 that agreement.

^ MR. PABLO: Dan?

MR. DECKER: Rich. It is clear who is representing the
Department of Justice, yet, on this matter?

MR. ALDRICH: At this point it still as far as I know it
is still Pat Barry.
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MR. GOETZ; What is your position on the open meetings
issue?

' MR. ALDRICH: My own personal viewpoint, Jim like I
said—the United States has no comparable requirement that
meetings be kept open or closed.

MR. MCOMBER; That was one of the things that we inherited
with that new Constitution that the state adopted a little bit
ago.

MRS. ROTH; Right.

MR. PABLO: Okay, then Urban, you said you'd like something
on the Tribes' position on the Kerr Dam?

MR. ROTH: Yes, on that and on the Flathead River, and
instream flow with regard to power projects and that sort of
thing.

MR. PABLO: Well, part of that could hinge on the BIA
studies and whatever comes out of that.

MR. ROTH; See, we are not familiar with what is going on.
Maybe what you could do is educate us as to the status of that.
I know that you've settled reached a settlement with the
Montana Power Company. I know, I think, that there is a new
license issued, is that right? We don't have the license. In
terms of the license, we don't know what is going to transpire
after that license terminates; whether there has been an
agreement to transfer ownership or what we've agreed to;
whether there are any plans for building additional power
projects within the reservation and power sites and who owns
those, or if they have been leased to someone

MR. PABLO; Jim?

MR. GOETZ; Obviously

MR. ROTH; We should have, probably, a preliminary idea of
how of what the quantity of water is that does the license
provide for a certain minimum quantity of water flowing through

dam gates. or

MR. PABLO; Yeah, that's a minimum flow.

MR. ROTH; So many cfs?

MR. PABLO; I forget what the number was.

MR. DECKER; That's just until the studies
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MR. PABLO: Yeah, that's just—that just hinges on the
result of the studies that won't be finished for three years.

~ MR. ROTH:; I see.

^ MR. GOETZ: Mr. Chairman. On the"protection of non-Indian
wate'r "rights, could we change that wording to protectipn of
anegied" non-Indians water rights? '

...(laughter)...

MR. ROTH: And you would like some of it back, huh?

MR. GOETZ: Well, if necessary.

MR. PABLO: When, we get when Jim gets his agenda items
down gets everything down in a week to ten days, get
everything the dates settled and everything we'll see
everybody in Helena.

MR. MCOMBER: We'll get you a copy of the transcript as soon
as it is completed.

MR. PABLO: Okay. Scott?

MR. BROWN: I was going to say she should have the
transcript ready in a couple weeks two to three weeks.

MR. PABLO: Okay. Any other comments? Okay.

MR. MCOMBER: Thank you very much.

The meeting adjourned at 3:50 p.m.
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OFF-RESERVATION WATER CLAIMS

OBJECTIONS TO TEMPORARY/PRELIMINARY DECREES
IN THE CLARK FORK DIVISION

1. 76-1 - Middle Fork of Flathead River

2. 76-J - SouthFork of Flathead River

3. 76-K - Swan River

4. 76-GJ- Flint Creek

5. 76-G - Clark Fork River Basin Above the Blackfoot River

6 76-M - Clark Fork River Between the Blackfoot River and
Flathead River Basin

7. 76-C - Fisher River Basin

8. 76-D - Kootenai River Basin

9 76-N - Lower Clark Fork River

10 76-B - Yaak River Basin

11. 76-E - Rock Creek Basin



ou ALEKSICH. JR.. CL^
"VSUTV^'

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF MONTANA

MISSOULA DIVISION

*******

CONFEDERATED S.Z'LISH & KOOTENAI
TRIBES OF THE FL.Z-TKZ^D RESER>'-TION,
MONTANA, et al,

Plaintiffs,

vs.

STATE OF MONTANA, er al,

Defenaancs.

CV 81-149-M

OPINION

AND

ORDER

Plaintiffs, the Confeaeraued Salisn and Kootenai Tribes and
certain of tneir memoers (hereinafter also "Tribes") instituted
T:nis action in 1981, seeKing co enjoin tne application_or
enforcement of the Montana Vvater Use Act of 1973 [§§ 85-2-101
enrough 85-2-704 ana §§ 3-7-101 through 3-7-502, M.C.A. (1983)]
on tne Flatneaa Inaian Reser•/ai-ion ana to any ana all waners
arising upon, flowing through or under, bordering, or otherwise
occurring on the Reservation. The Tribes further seek a
aeclaration tha- tne stare's Warer Use Act is unlawful and
unconstitutional as applied to tne Tribes and their members and
cO all waters arising on the Reservation.

On July 12, 1982, Plainciff filed a motion for summary
judgment. By order of tne Hon. Russell E. Smith, dated August 3,
1983, the proceedings were stayed pursuant to stipulation of the
parties, who had entered into negotiations. The order requirea
the parties to file a status report every four montns, ana
provided that any party at any time may request the Court to move
the case forward, at wnich time the Court will set a time within
w^icn the State of [-"ontana and other defendants shall respond to
the Trioes' motion.

The State of Montana has requested tnis Court to terminate
--0 stav and to set a oriefing schedule on tne Tribes' motion for
s judgment. Tre Trioes in tarn nave witndraun tneir motion

z seer, to na/3 f^.e st= - cc-ti-^ec: T-^.e Trioes furtoer request



that the Court take no action in this matter until the Supreme
Court of Montana enters a decision in State of Montana ex rel.
Mike Greeiv, Attorney General, Water Court of the State of
Montana and the Judges of that Court, Petitioners, y. United
States, individually and a^ trustee for each of the hereinafter
named Indian Tribes, ^ al., Responaents, No. 84-333 ("State of
Montana v. Unitea States").

There are two issues pending before tne Supreme Court of
Montana in State of Montana v. United States. The first is
whether the Disclaimer Clause contained in ;^rticle I of the
'iontana Constitution pronioirs state ad]ucication of Indian water
rignrs. The second issue is tne aojudication proceaures
set forth in the Montana Water Use hct are aaeqaate to adjudicate
Indian Water Rights. State of Montana v. United States thus
represents the latest development in the continuing dispute over
the proper forum for aa]udication of Indian and federal reserved
water rights.

The history of the dispute in Montana dates back to 1979,
v-;nen Judges Hatf^eld and Battin of tiis District dismissed seven
consolicated actions Drougnt by tne Unitea States for the purpose
of adjudicating tne water rights of certain Indian tribes as well
as Indian and non-Indian individuals in and to certain streams.
Northern Cheyenne Tribe v. Tonaue River Water Users Association,
484 F.Supp. 31 (D. Mont 1979). The Court citea United States v.
Colorado River Water Conservation District, 424 U.S. 800, 96
S.Ct. 1236, 47 L.Ed.2a 483 (1976), for the factors instrumental
in Its decision to aismiss the action in aeference to state
oroceedings:

in water rights litigation, the interdependency of the
various rights; the availability of comprehensive state
systems for adjudication of water rights, the stage of the
proceedings in the federal court, beyond the filing of the
complaint and the motion to dismiss, tne extensive
involvement of state water rignts, ana the apparent design
of tne McCarran Amendment to avoid piecemeal or burdensome
litigation.

Northern Chevenne Tripe, supra, 484 F Supp at 35. The Court then
examinea Montana's Senate Bill 76 and its provisions for water
rights adjudication (now coaified in Part Two, Chapter Two, Title
85^ M.C.A.), finding that they "reflect both the policy ana the
essential mecnan^-sm for aajuaication of state water rignts.
:\ajudication by aaversary proceeaing initiated by one claimant
against all otners in nis arainage nas been forsaken in favor of
Dlanket aajudication of all claims, inducing federal and feaeral
trust claims." Ig , at 35-36 rempnasis it^ oriainal].



On appeal, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals reversed,
holding in part that the McCarran Amendjnent did not grant
jurisdiction in a state wnich "expressly disclaims jurisdiction
over Indian lands within its constitution and enabling act."
Northern Cheyenne Tribe v. Adsit, 668 F.2d 1080, 1084 (9th Cir.
1982 ) .

The case was ultimately appealed to the United States
Supreme Court, which held that the District Court properly
dismissed the actions in deference to tne state ad:]udicatory
orocess. Arizona v. Sar Carlos Apache Trioe, 463 U.S. 545, 103
S.Ct. 3201, 77 L.Ea.Za 837 (1983) Ir^ a zcoziote, tne Court
stated that "resort to tne feaerai forum should remain available
if warranted by a significant cnange in circumstances, such as,
for example, a decision by a state court that it does not have
jurisdiction over some or all of these claims after all." Id.,
103 S.Ct. at 3215, note 20.

On remand, the Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit stated
tnat It believed dismissal to be unwise. "?• stay of the federal
actions would be preferaDie to a cis-^issal here so the feaerai
forum woula most readily be availaole if warranted by a
'significant change of circumstances' . . . . " Northern Cheyenne
Tribe V. Adsit, 721 F.2d 1187, 1188 (9th Cir. 1983). The
aistrict courts were instructed to stay tne actions until "state
court proceedings have been concluded." I_d. , at 1189.

Tne directives of the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals in
-dsit suggest tnat this Court shoula furtner stay the present
oroceecings. Tne Court recognizes ^nat this case is noc
identical to the actions originally dismissed by District Judges
Hatfield and Battin, since it does not expressly request a
aeneral ad:iudication of water rights on tne Flathead Indian
Reservation. On the other hand, were this Court presently to
rule in the Trioes' favor, it would effectively thwart the
efforts of the Montana Water Rights Compact Commission and the
entire state adjudicatory process. Should the Supreme Court of
Montana rule that the state proceedings are inadequate for
adjudication of federally reserved water rignts, then it may be
appropriate for this action to proceed, but not before.

Recently, this Court decided tne case of Confederated Salish
and Kootenai Tribes of the Flatheaa Reservation v Flatheaa
Irriqation and Povver Proiect, et al , Cause No. CV 85-150-M,

F.Supp , wnerein the Court nela tnat ac]ucication of
water rignts, inciuaing feaerally-reservec water rignts, is a
proDer function of the courts of tae State of Montana to wnicn
c^ls Coi-rt would aefer The Court "onet-^eless issuea a Temporary
".esrrairina Craer u~aer tie emergency circu'^stances tierein

CxaifTiea, to Ta^ntair uhe status Trioes ' allegea



aboriginal fishing rights guaranteed by treaty were under
consideration. The parties introduced evidence purporting to
show tne present disarray of Montana's water adjudication system,
and specifically a petition filed in tne Supreme Court of
I-Iontana by the Department of Fish, Wildlife and Parks. This and
other evidence indicates that the water adjudication process is
in the midst of controversy but nonetheless gradually being
stabilized and put in order. Under these circumstances, where
the Supreme Court of Montana will soon decide these critical
issues"of disclaimer ana adequacy of state proceedings, it would
only exaceroate the existing proolems should this Court meadle in
cne warer adjudication arena.

It is thus clear that the parties' present remedy is to
press action at the state level, not to insist on a federal forum
which must remain unavailable in the presence of these unresolved
matters of state law.

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED thar all proceedings in this
action are stayea until state court proceedings have been
concluaea or until tne further oraer of tnis Court.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED tnat the parties are to file a status
report in this matter once eacn month, the first such report to
oe filed on or before Septemoer 30, 1985, with additional reports
filed prior to the last aay of eacn succeeaing month until
furtner order of this Court.

Done and dated this 6^ aay of Septemoer, 1985.

CHARLES

United

LGVfetiEr^
ret Judge

:^L0vte



IN THE WATER COURTS OF THE STATE OF MONTANA
CLARK FORK DIVISION
KOOTENAI RIVER BASIN

IN THE MATTER OF THE ADJUDICATION
OF THE EXISTING RIGHTS TO THE
USE OF ALL THE WATER, BOTH
SURFACE AND UNDERGROUND, WITHIN
THE KOOTENAI RIVER DRAINAGE AREA,
INCLUDING ALL TRIBUTARIES OF
THE KOOTENAI RIVER IN LINCOLN
AND FLATHEAD COUNTIES, MONTANA

OBJECTIONS OF THE
CONFEDERATED
SALISH AND KOOTENAI
TRIBES, MONTANA

I. INTRODUCTION

The Confedsratea Salisn and Kootenai Tribes, Montana

(hereinafter referred to as "Confederated Tribes"), and the

members thereof, object to the March 22, 1984, issuance of the

Temoorary Preliminary Decree for tne Kootenai River Basin and the

Reoort of the Water Master of the Kootenai River Basin. This

objection is made without acceding to tne above Court's jurisdiction

and without waiving any objection the Confederated Tribes may have to

the above Court's juridiction on the grounds of (1) inadequacy of

state proceedings to adjudicate the rights asserted, (2) violation

of the State of Montana Constitution, (3) tribal sovereign immunity,

and (4) other grounds.

The Temporary Preliminary Decree affects waters which

are a part of the claim of the Confederated Tribes to aboriginal

hunting, fishing and gathering rights which date from time

immemorial and which are recognized, reserved, and guaranteed by

5 ire^ity of Hellgate, Montana, Ju./ -5? 1355, ratifiec 3

-. 12 Stat . 975. irticle 3 c. ; _ of



the Confederated Tribes:

The exclusive right of taking fish in all
the streams running through or bordering
said reservation is further secured to said
Indians; as also the right of taking fish at
all usual ana accustomed places, in common
with citizens of the Territory, and of
erecting temoorary buildings for curing;
together with the orivilege of hunting,'
gathering roots and berries, and pasturing
their horses and cattle upon ooen and
unclairaea land.

II. ABORIGINAL RIGHTS CLAIM

The "Temporary Preliminary Decree" for the Kootenai River

Basin fails to include the water rights claim filed by the

Confederated Trioes and the Unitea States Government for the

protection of their aooriginal treaty rights. On or about April

30, 1982, the Confederated Tribes filed a water rights claim with

the State of Montana for all waters necessary for the protection

of their aboriginal fishing, hunting, gathering, and pasturing

rights reserved by them in the Treaty of Hellgate. The

Confederated Tribes' claim expressly includes off-reservation

reserved waters, and was filed pursuant to a Stipulation entered

into between the Confederated Tribes and the State of Montana.

The Stipulation was entered into and aooroved by the Federal

District Court of Montana, Missoula Division. See Confederated

Salish and Kootenai T^-ibes of the Flatheaa Reservation. Montana

et. ?1 , V. T-ne State of Doc;ce-. Mc . -
10^ -n r- 1
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1981). U The United States Government, in its capacity as
trustee, filed a similar claim on behalf of the Confederated
Salish and Kootenai Tribes on or about April 29, 1982, for
protection of those aboriginal sights recognized and guaranteed
pursuant to the Treaty of Hellgate. Nowithstanding these
filings, Paragraph 14 of the Water Masters Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law:

The Court finds that no individual nor
Department filed any valid instream claims
fisn and wildlife instream uses."

The Confederated Tribes object to this finding because
It fails to recognize the aboriginal water claims and filings
cited above. While Montana law appears not to accommodate Indian
aboriginal and reservea rights, particularly their priority date

U Part Two of claim One, Attachment A, Paragraph ^ of thA
Exist?n. 30, 1982 katemin? of^ClLm JcrExisting Water Rights states: "The Trioes claim for i

0 e;a?r-s ;ro?f!L"l^?.a1ron ^aiel,
o?her'Li " forms
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from time immemorial (see e.g. §85-2-316) and is therefore

inadequate since such substantive rights exist as a matter of

Federal law, the Master's Findings should be modified to reflect

the aboriginal hunting, fishing, gathering and pasturing rights

of this objector from time immemorial as recognized, reserved and

guaranteed by the Treaty of Hellgate, July 16, 1855.

III. INADEQUATE NOTICE

The Confederated Tribes also objects to the findings and

conclusions of the Water Master for the Kootenai River Basin, because

they fail to include adequate notice to the Kootenai River water

users that water rights decreed in the Kootenai River Basin may be

subject to the possible senior water claims of ths Confederated

Tribes. Although the Notice of Entry of Temporary Preliminary

Decree makes reference to Indian and Federal reserved water

rights under the heading of; "What is a Temporary Preliminary

Decree?", the Water Master's Report, adopted by the Court by

Order dated February 28, 1984, makes no mention of Tribal

reserved water rights in the Kootenai River Basin. (See MCA

§85-2-231 (c)) . See also, 85-2-701 MCA which declares that "the

water and water rights within each v/ater division are

interrelated * * Accordingly, we suggest that the Master's

findings and conclusions include a orovision affording adeauate

notice to Kootenai River v/-.users of the De''iG'-:''cv oo'=si'"i''^
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2

3
seniority of other claims to water in this and other basins

4 within tne Clark Fork Water Division,
o

IV. HYBRID DECREE UNAUTHORIZED

While there is language in the "Temporary Preliminary
Decree" which purports to oreserve the status of the United

States of America in behalf of the United States Forest Service
with respect to reserved water claims and which represents that

no Final Decree will issue until either a compact is negotiated
or approved or the United States of America is given the

opportunity to file and have adjudicated its claim in behalf of the
U.S. Forest Service, (See No. 6 pp. 16, 17), no sioiUar language
is included which purports to preserve the status of the

Confederated Tribes' rights to its aboriginal and reserved claim.
The "Temporary Preliminary Decree" is deficient because it fails
to recognize and protect the Confederated Tribes' aborignal and
reserved rights.

The Confederated Tribes further object to the Water

Court's proceeding through the vehicle of a "Temporary
Preliminary Decree" -a hybrid procedure not authorized by
statute—which simply serves to confuse the parties and undermine
the efficacy of the state adjudication process. The February 23,
1984 Order purports to conclude that the "Temporary Preliminary



Decree" meets the requirements of 85-2-231(1) MCA. 2/ Yet,

subsection (1)(c) of 85-2-231 requires that the decree be based on

The contents of compacts approved by the
Montana Legislature and the Tribe or federal
agency or, lacking an approval compact, the filing
for federal and Indian reserved rights. . . .

Clearly the requirements of 85-2-231(1) are not met.

Negotiations between the United States Government and the State

of Montana with regard to the Kootenai River Basin waters are

ongoing pursuant to 82-2-703 MCA. No preliminary decree can

issue until those negotiations conclude or federal filings are

made. §§85-2-231 (c) and (d), and 85-2-702 (3) MCA. Because

no preliminary decree can issue, a fortiori the requirements of

85--2-23 1 ( 1 are not met.

The Confederated Tribes recognize that a "temoorary

decree" or an "interlocutory decree" is authorized by 85-2-231

(d) MCA. Our objection, however, goes to the use of a "temporary

preliminary decree" (emphasis ours). It appears that the Court

intends to give its hybrid "Temoorary Preliminary Decree" all of

the substance of a "preliminary decree". Changing its name can

not change its legal effect.

2/ The Order reads: "the Court finds that the Report meets the
requirements for the Temporary Preliminary Decree set forth in
85-2-23 i(1) MCA 1973." See also the Water Maste'^'s Conclusion of
Law No. 1 ("This ^eoort cne requirements for " "e'-oorary
?reli"iin^r_, D-2-ee as o; 85-2-231 MCA

/ -



In its February 9, 1984 Memorandum, the Court makes

clear its intention to treat the terms interchangeably;

But as a practical matter it is insignificant
whether the decree is caiiea a preliminary or
a temporary decree if they both do the same
thing. Furthermore, if botn decrees have the
same legal effect, the use of the normal
procedure, which involves issuance of a
preliminary decree, makes sense because it
IS consistent with the general adjudication
procedures established by the Legislature and
the Water Courts, and, therefore best serves
the orderly administration of water rights.

Memorandum at 10-11 (emphasis ours). The Court's intent

to treat its Temporary Preliminary Decree as a de facto preliminary

decree is further suggested by the public notice accompanying its

Kootenai River Basin Temporary Preliminary Decree. The notice

states: "IF A RIGHT IS NOT OBJECTED TO, IT SHALL REMAIN

UNCHANGED AND BE ENTERED IN THE FINAL DECREE." (emphasis ours).

This language suggests that the preliminary decree stage would be

omitted if objections are not received. V

Full compliance with 85-2-231 MCA, and full consideration

3/ Another example is contained in Paragraoh 16 of the Water
•Raster's Report wherein the report states: "The Final Decree of
a Basin shall allow for, and make a part of its provision, ETTe
final agreement of the Federal Reserve rights if any. . . ."
(emphasis ours). To the contrary, 85-2-231(1) MCA requires
federal rights to be factored in during the preliminary decree
stage. It IS also noteworthy that Paragraph 16 purports to pre-
serve the status of the United States Forest Service's reserved
water claims but no similar language is included which purports
to preserve the status of the Confederated Tribes' rights to its
aboriginal reserved claim.

-7-



50 ;i

of Indian and federal reserved rights is not a mere technicality

(See Memorandum at 10); it is the law. The Confederated Tribes

object to the use of the "Temporary Preliminary Decree" in the

manner it is being used because it circumvents unambiguous state

law, relegates consideration of Indian and federal reserved water

rights to a "later amendments" exercise, and forces the Tribes to

assume the stance of objector. 4/

Moreover, adjudication of water rights in the Kootenai River

Basin should be suspended during the pendency of negotiations

with federal agencies over non-Indian reserved water rights

pursuant to 85-2-217 MCA. During that suspension no preliminary

decree should be issued.

V. CONCLUSION

The Confederated Tribes respectfully request this Court

to withdraw the "Temporary Preliminary Decree" for the Kootenai River

Basin and the Report of the Water Master on the Kootenai River Basin

to insure compliance with State law. If the Court finds it

necessary for the orderly administration of water rights to

temporarily decree the claims to water on the Kootenai River Basin,

we respectfully submit that the Court if authorized to issue a

4_/ Unless the Confederated Tribes file objections to and
participate in these proceedings to adjudicate the waters of
the Kootenai River Basin, state law may prohibit the Tribes from
attacking the final decree. See 85-2-235 MCA.



temporary decree for that purpose pursuant to 85-2-231(1)(d) MCA.

We further request that the Water Court delcare that no general

adjudication hearings will be held pursuant to 85-2-233 MCA until

a compact is concluded with the United States Government on

behalf of federal agencies or the Confederated Tribes' claims are

added and a preliminary decree is issued pursuant to

85-2-231(1)(c) MCA.

Finally the Confederated Tribes respectfully request

that the Master's findings be amended as follows:

Reserved and Aboriginal Water Rights:

The determination of water rights in the Kootenai
River Basin is subject to the contents any
future compact negotiated by the Reserved
Rights Compact Commission and Montana Indian
Tribes or the United States Government concerning
reserved water rights, or any water rights which
may result from the future adjudication of Indian
reserved and aboriginal water rights.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this day of 1984.

TTOinmium
35 North Grand
Bozeman, Montana 59715
(406) 587-0618

V njfWPfi ^Dicker
P.O. Box 278
Pablo, Montana 59855
(406) 675-4600

ATTORNEYS FOR THE CONFEDERATED
SALISH AND KOOTENAI TRIBES OF
THE FLATHEAD RESERVATION, MONTANA
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^ad been necessary since May
' Photo by Dwight Tracy

The Joint Board of Control of the
Flathead, Mission and Jocko
irrigation districts is circulating a
petition to all irrigators asking to
have the Flathead Project
transferred from the Bureau of
Indian Affairs to the Bureau of
Reclamation

Sen John Melcher has asked for
the sentiment of the water users to a
transfer of control, the petition
planners explained

Chuck Stipe, chairman of the
Joint Board, said m announcing the
petition drive, "The time is crucial
for all of us to make the irrigators'
position known The continued
deterioration of the Project and the
need to resolve long-standing issues
of concern to all of us — the Tribes,
Indian irrigators and non-Indian
irrigators — requires that we take
action now "

The petition drive will be
conducted through the local water
users associations Individual
irrigators are being urged to
contact their water users boards or
board members for additional
information and copies of the
petition

The drive will be conducted from
Sept 6 to 20, when the Joint Board

plans ta'furh the petitions in to the
state's con^essmen and senators.
Stipe said

Water users have long been
concerned about the deteriorating
condition of the Project's facilities
and the B I A's apparent inability
or unwillingness to provide funds
and expertise for renovations But
the wording of the petition indicates
that recent negotiations over in-
stream flows and reservoir levels —
which didn't include the water

users — were the final straw for the
Joint Board of Control

The petition to the Montana
congressional delegation says

"Whereas Flathead Irrigation
and Power Project facilities are
continuing to deteriorate and have
not received adequate attention by
the Bureau of Indian Affairs

"And whereas the water users

were not included in a) the B I A
Tribes agreement governing in-
stream flows and reservoir pools
submitted to the federal court m
Helena last month, and b) the
meetings held after the dismissal of
the lawsuit to determine the precise
levels of the in stream flows and
those reservoir pools

(Continued on next page)

-c?^ ja-L - --



HeUgate, the Flathead, Kootenay and Pend d'
Orielles Indians ceded to the United States all their richt
was tef.lTVrllV,: "nrc^SeS^^^S^MJHiicjSsiv^ SirLf
FJathlad°?nSL'''Llej5a?;on''o855r'̂ ''"'' " I'"""" the
Subsequent to the Hellgate Treaty of 1855, the Flathead Allotmeni-Act was passed on April 23, 190i|. This act allotted ?Lds?o the
feasibility of^ survey to determine theK«, i irrigation project within the Reservationactual irrigation survey began on July 8 1907

the final report was filed November 12, 1907 The final
possibilities kvo^S.^^^Sn^^he

Therefore, the Office of Indian Affairs and the U.S. Reclamation
service furniagreement in I907 whereby the Reclamationse^j^ furnished the engineering and field construction

while the Office of Indian Affairs retained ultimate
authority for approving construction plans. The Reclamation

when^the'̂ Flathpfn''?"^ '̂""?^^®" design assistance until 192^1When the Flathead Irrigation Project was transferred back to thP
Service. The Flathead ProjecrSas alSay^beenunder the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

provided the first Congressional

<^nh^^n u ^®Sinning construction of the Flathead Project
^ provided continuing appropriations for theconstruction work. Prior to I9I6 the appropriations wer^

F?«?h^rH®? timber belonging to the
uti^?7Pri of I916 provided that the Tribal fundsutilized be repaid and that payment for irrigation works should
be made by the landowner whose land benefittfd.

the Reservation boundaries
fr irrigable, of which 97,000 acres had bee^

homes^laders!""'̂ "y
Congress has continued since 1900's to appropriate reimburseahlp
construction dollars for both the irrigation and pow"systJm^
that are operated by the Flathead Project. The total federal

sjste^if Flathead Project irrigation
thp nnnofH^I; K un amount invested in irrigationunpaid reimburseable federal investment is $6,055,267.

supplies irrigation water to

boundaries! "ithin the Reservation



The irrigation system has U storage reserviors with a total
storage capacity of approximately 157,000 acre feet. Twelve (12)
of these storage reservoirs, which encompass over 9000 acres, and
the main water supply sources are all located on Indian Trust
lands owned by the Confederated Salish & Kootenai Tribes.

There are some 108 miles of main supply canals and about 1,077 '
miles of irrigation distribution canals and laterals, with over
10,000 structures, many of which are located on Tribal trust

^0^/^ f'o'' administrative purposes the Flathead Project is divided into
3 main irrigation divisions: the Jocko Division lying in and —

,1 '̂̂ watger from the Jocko River drainage, the Camas Division 4^^
lying in and water supplied from the Little Bitterroot River
drainage and the Mission Division lying in the Mission Range with
water supplied therefrom. The main irrigation divisions are
divided into miscellaneous subdivisions. The lateral systems for
those subdivisions can serve only those areas, but the water
supply for all the areas is interconnected through storage and
feeder canals, U. — vwkte-sj 0LX>\,-oi5 / v.O*''^

The Project first delivered water through co^s7?u^eaTrr"igation
facilities in 1911. Aspf 1983, the Project delivered over
124,000 acre feet ofJ^ter to approximately 127,000 acres of
assessable lands.

About 91.5? of the actual irrigated acreage is land held in fee
largely by non-Indian owners. The remaining 9.5% is trust land,
either Tribal or alloted.

The gross crop value in 1983 for lands irrigated by FIP was $20.5
million with a per acre value of $161.00 per acre. The sprinkler
crop value for 1983, included in the gross crop value, was $15
million.

The area has a growing season of about 120 days. The main crops
are hay, pasture, and grains, with minor crops of potatoes,
lentils, sunflowers, soybeans, and fruit. Sprinkler irrigation
IS practiced on about 48% of the lands.

As stated earlier over 90% of lands irrigated are lands held in
fee status by non-Indian owners. These non-Indian landowners are
represented by state chartered irrigation districts. Three
districts were organized under Montana State Law in 1926. The
districts are the Flathead, Mission and the Jocko districts.
These 3 districts signed repayment contracts with the U.S.
Government in 1928 through 1934. Under the terms of the contract
the districts are obligated to repay the federal government its
net investment in irrigation facilities if the net revenues
generated from the sale of electrical energy within the
Reservation boundaries are sufficient to meet the debt
installment. To date, all federal investment that has been
repaid to the U.S. Government, has come from net revenues
generated from the sale of power. The non-Indian irrigator has



paid little or nothing for the system that serves his/her land.

Administration of the irrigation districts functions is
coordinated through a Joint Board of Control composed of
irrigation district board members plus one member at large.
Tribal members whose land is in trust status are excluded from
belonging to an irrigation district. The Tribal member whose
land IS in trust can not run for election to the irrigation
district board nor can they vote for district board members.

Currently, the Joint Board of Control is responsible for the
collection of irrigation operation and maintenance charges from
the waterusers it represents, owners of fee patent lands. In
addition, if the net revenues, generated from the sale of
electric energy, are not sufficient to reimburse the United
States for the currently due construction costs on the irrigation
system, the Joint Board is responsible for the collection of the
due payment from its members through a special assessment. As
stated earlier, this has never happened.

(Brief comment on power system)


